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Corporate Information

Shenzhen Investment Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company
is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum

Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

—  Property development

—  Property investment

—  Property management

—  Provision of transportation services

— Manufacture and sale of industrial and commercial products

- Infrastructure investment

Provision of information technological services

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Group is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited
(“Shum Yip Holdings"), which is a private company incorporated

in Hong Kong.

2.1Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which also
include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, certain buildings and equity
investments, which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.
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2.1Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended

31 December 2005. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated

from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group

obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date

that such control ceases. All significant intercompany transactions

and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders

in the results and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

2.2Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group and are

adopted for the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

HKAS 1
HKAS 2
HKAS 7
HKAS 8

HKAS 10
HKAS 11
HKAS 12
HKAS 14
HKAS 16
HKAS 17
HKAS 18
HKAS 19
HKAS 21
HKAS 23
HKAS 24
HKAS 27
HKAS 28
HKAS 32
HKAS 33
HKAS 36

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Construction Contracts

Income Taxes

Segment Reporting

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation

Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

B RS ER R

Q1B EE &)

RERBEZEE

RAE M BRRBAR LT REMB L

AEE=ZE

EAF+ - A=T—BILFEZHBHRR-ME
NEZFETBHKEZ AES G A REEE

Hez B - Ak

BHEEENEELRIE-ME

B2 AR EAR S RSN HEER Y

PR RESEEIMNIRER AT ZMBARZ

HERFEE e

=7
A

22 KRBT ERMBREEA

FEAREAYNAFREYBEREERRB 2

I RISERT BB

BEE G ERIE 1R
BEAGTEAFE 2%
BB GTERIETR
BE G ERIESH
EREGFHERIE 105
AT ERIE 15
BABEETERIZFE 125
ER G ERIE 1455
BB ERIE 165
BEAGTEAFE 175
ER T ERIE185%
BB ERIE 195
BABBETERIZE215%
BEAGTEAIE 235
BEE G ERIE 245
BEAGTEAIFE 275
BEA G ERAFE 285
BB ERIE325
BB BEERIZE 335
BEA G EAIE365

A mEER T :

M mEz 25

FE

REMER

SHBE gt
B REHE

mHEA%RER

BEAN

P53t

PaNiE Aoy

e NN E T

HE

Wezs

B E@A

SN[ R B 2 o

fEr SR AR

BEATZHE

ﬁA&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi
Nt E AR 2 IRE

eRMIE:-BERZ7

ZRAF

BERME

57

2005 4F 4

RIERERDE



58

2005 Annual Report

Shenzhen Investment Limited

Notes to Financial Statements
31 December 2005 —EERF+_-_A=+—H

2.2Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

HKAS 38 Intangible Assets

HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

HKAS 39 Transition and Initial Recognition of Financial Assets

Amendment and Financial Liabilities

HKAS 40 Investment Property
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-
depreciable Assets

HK-Int 3 Revenue — Pre-completion Contracts for the Sale
of Development Properties

HK-Int 4 Lease — Determination of the Length of Lease Term

in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23,
27, 28, 33, 37, 38, 39 Amendment, HK-Int 4 and HK(SIC)-Int 21
has had no material impact on the accounting policies of the Group
and the Company and the methods of computation in the Group’s

and the Company’s financial statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests on the
face of the consolidated balance sheet, consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and other
disclosures. In addition, in prior years, the Group’s share of tax
attributable to associates was presented as a component of the
Group’s total tax charge/(credit) in the consolidated income
statement. Upon the adoption of HKAS 1, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results of associates is presented net of the

Group’s share of tax attributable to associates.

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related parties and
affected the Group’s related party disclosures.
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2.2Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is summarised as follows: FRANE BB B REERN 2 BT

(a) BEEREEIN W -—BEPUESR

(@) HK-Int 3 Revenue - Pre-completion Contracts for the

2005 4F 4

Sale of Development Properties

In prior years, properties under development which had been
pre-sold were stated at cost plus attributable profits less sales
deposits/instalments received and any foreseeable losses, and
were classified under current assets. When properties under
development had been pre-sold, the total estimated profit
was apportioned over the entire period of construction to
reflect the progress of the development. On this basis, profit
recognised on properties pre-sold during the period was
calculated by reference to the proportion of construction costs
incurred up to the balance sheet date to the estimated total
construction costs to completion, limited to the amount of
sales deposits/instalments received under legally binding
contracts at the balance sheet date, with due allowances for
contingencies. Revenue was recognised from the pre-sale of
properties under development, when the construction work
had progressed to a stage where the ultimate realisation of

profit can be reasonably determined.

Upon the adoption of HK-Int 3, revenue from development
properties sold before the completion of construction is

recognised only when the following conditions are satisfied:

(i)  The risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred

to the buyers;

(i) The Group does not retain continuing managerial
involvement to the extent usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the properties sold;

(iii) The amounts of revenue and costs can be measured

reliably; and

(iv) Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with

the transaction will flow to the Group.
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2.2Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(a)

(b)

HK-Int 3 Revenue - Pre-completion Contracts for the

Sale of Development Properties (continued)

In accordance with the transitional provision of HK-Int 3, the
Group chooses not to apply this interpretation retrospectively
to pre-completion contracts for the sale of development
properties entered into before 1 January 2005. It continues
to account for those contracts under the accounting policies
used prior to the application of this interpretation until all
revenue on those contracts has been recognised. Any pre-
completion contacts for the sale of development properties
entered into on or after 1 January 2005 are accounted for
using the new accounting policy. Upon the adoption of HK-
Int 3, properties under development, for which pre-sales have
not yet commenced, and those which have been pre-sold on
or after 1 January 2005 are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The effects of the above changes are the decrease in
revenue and profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
of HK$133,653,000 and HK$36,096,000, respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2005.

HKAS 17 - Leases

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for own use
were stated at cost or 1997 valuation less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group’s leasehold interest
in land and buildings is separated into leasehold land and
leasehold buildings. The Group’s leasehold land is classified
as an operating lease, while buildings continue to be classified
as part of property, plant and equipment. Prepaid land
premiums for land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently amortised on the
straight-line basis over the lease term. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in
the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in

property, plant and equipment.
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2.2Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(b) HKAS 17 - Leases (continued)

(c)

This change in accounting policy has had no effect on the

consolidated income statement and retained profits.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments

Equity securities

In prior years, the Group classified its investments in equity
securities as long term investments, which were held for non-
trading purposes and were stated at their fair values on an
individual basis with gains and losses recognised as
movements in the investment revaluation reserve. Upon the
adoption of HKAS 39, these securities held by the Group at 1
January 2005 in the amount of HK$31,191,000 are
designated as available-for-sale investments under the
transitional provisions of HKAS 39 and accordingly are stated
at fair value with gains or losses being recognised as a separate
component of equity until subsequent derecognition or

impairment.

In prior years, the Group classified its investments in equity
securities for trading purposes as short term investments, and
were stated at their fair values on an individual basis with
gains and losses recognised in the income statement. Upon
the adoption of HKAS 39, these securities held by the Group
at 1 January 2005 in the amount of HK$2,900,000 are
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss under the transitional provisions of HKAS 39 and
accordingly are stated at fair value with gains or losses being

recognised in the income statement.

The adoption of HKAS 39 has not resulted in any change in
the measurement of these equity securities.
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2.2Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(d) HKAS 40 - Investment Property

(e)

In prior years, changes in the fair values of investment
properties were dealt with as movements in the investment
property revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve was
insufficient to cover a deficit, on a portfolio basis, the excess
of the deficit was charged to the income statement. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus was credited to the income

statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 40, gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the income statements of the Group and its
associates in the year in which they arise. In accordance with
the transitional provisions of HKAS 40, the opening balance
of retained profits and the results for the comparative period
have been restated to reflect this change retrospectively. The
effects of the above change are summarised in note 2.4 to

the financial statements.

HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment

In prior years, no recognition and measurement of share-based
payment transactions in which employees (including directors)
were granted share options over shares in the Company was
required until such options were exercised by employees that
the share capital and share premium were credited with the

proceeds received.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2, when employees (including
directors) render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”), the cost of the
equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which the instruments

are granted.
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2.2Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

(e) HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment (continued)

(f)

The main impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is the recognition
of the cost of these transactions and a corresponding entry
to equity for employee share options. The revised accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions is described in
more detail in note 2.5 “Summary of significant accounting

policies” below.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS
2 under which the new recognition and measurement policies
have not been applied to all options granted to employees
on or before 7 November 2002.

The Group has recognised the cost of options which were
granted during the year in the current year's income statement
in accordance with the revised accounting policy. The
adoption of HKFRS 2 has had no impact on the retained profit
as at 31 December 2003 and at 31 December 2004.

The effects of adopting HKFRS 2 are summarised in note 2.4

to the financial statements.

HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and HKAS 36 —

Impairment of Assets

In prior years, goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1
January 2001 was eliminated against consolidated retained
profits in the year of acquisition and was not recognised in
the income statement until disposal or impairment of the

acquired business.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January
2001 was carried in the balance sheet and was recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a systematic basis over
the remaining average useful life of the acquired depreciable/
amortisable assets.
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22 R BT ERMBREEA
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2.2Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

2005 Annual Report

Shenzhen Investment Limited

(f) HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and HKAS 36 —

Impairment of Assets (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36 has resulted in the
Group ceasing annual goodwill amortization. Goodwill
previously eliminated against the retained earnings remains
eliminated against the retained earnings and is not recognised
in the income statement when all or part of the business to
which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired. Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
values of the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of the acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates (previously referred to as “negative
goodwill”), after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

the income statement.

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have required the Group
to derecognise at 1 January 2005 the carrying amounts of

negative goodwill against retained profits.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in note 2.4
to the financial statements. In accordance with the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3, comparative amounts have not been

restated.
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2.3Impact of Issued but not yet Effective

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that
are not mandatory for these financial statements. The Group has
not early applied these HKFRSs in these financial statements. The
following new and revised HKFRSs, although not early adopeted
by the Group, will have impact on the Group’s financial statements

in the period of initial application:

HKAS 1 Amendment  Capital Disclosures
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4

Amendments

Financial Guarantee Contracts

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard will affect the
disclosures about qualitative information about the Group'’s
objective, policies and processes for managing capital; quantitative
data about what the Company regards as capital; compliance with
any capital requirements; and the consequences of any non-

compliance.

HKFRS 7 will replace HKAS 32 and has modified the disclosure
requirements of HKAS 32 relating to financial instruments. This
HKFRS shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007.

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 regarding
financial guarantee contracts, financial guarantee contracts are
initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at
the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS
37 and (ii) the amount initially recognised, less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18.
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2.4Summary of the Impact of Changes in QAT RSB ECHE
Accounting Policies
(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (a) UZmEEEEBRRZTE
Effect of adopting
RaTIRR %8
HKASs 32*
At 1 January 2005 and 39* HKAS 40# HKFRS 3*
= BE BA
B %328k S ER B HE
R=2215-A-8 R 395+ FA0%4  RAIEIR
Share of
Changesin  Surplus on opening
classification  revaluation Derecgonition  adjustments
Effect of new policies of equity of investment  of negative of an
(Increase/(decrease)) investments properties goodwill associateA Total
e
FRRZE EatiRE RENME KR G
(8 (")) 2EEE EfERH BHE HAEA a8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THTL THT T THT
Assets EE
Available-for-sale equity investments B4 HERFIERE 31,191 - - = 31,191
Long term investments RERE (31,191) - - - (31,191)
Equity investments at fair value BREBREAAENE
through profit or loss ZEFRRE 2,900 - - = 2,900
Short term investments RHRE (2,900) - - - (2,900)
Negative goodwill EEEES = = 113,001 = 113,001
Interests in associates NN - - 436,094 1,852 437,946
550,947
Liabilities/equity afE/ Ex
Investment property revaluation reserve & &¥EE L E - (223,180) = = (223,180)
Investment revaluation reserve REEMHE 6,485 - - - 6,485
Available-for-sale equity investments
revaluation reserve ENE 7 ERERE B EHE (6,485) = = = (6,485)
Retained profits RERF = 223,180 538,383 1,852 763,415
Minority interests LERR o - - 10,712 - 10,712
550,947
- Adjustments taken effect prospectively from 1 January 2005 & ABR-_ZERF—A—HEEXN
# Adjustments/presentation taken effect retrospectively # AEZ2HREBPER

A The opening adjustments of an associate were related to the derecognition of negative A A E N R  BYRAREK I HAEHELAEERTIA
goodwill and financial instruments’ adjustments. =1
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2.4Summary of the Impact of Changes in

Accounting Policies (continued)

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet (continued)

248THREH

() BREEERBERZVE (B)

SEHME »)

Effect of adopting
S ITNE A
At 31 December 2005 HKASs 32 HKAS 40 HKFRS 3 HKFRS 2
and 39
EEET B B
R=B25% £ 8%E323 BESH B #®E BHHRE
TEEET=E RE39%  EHIE40% EH#35% ey
Share of
Changesin  Surplus on Equity- opening
classification revaluation of Derecognition settled  adjustments
Effect of new policies of equity  investment  of negative share option of an
(Increase/(decrease)) investment  properties goodwill arrangements associate Total
URAE FEfs
FRRZE BHtRE REM* KR g8z BEAT
(&, (BD)) PEEH EfBH BHE  BREZY A it &g
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THET THT THT TR
Assets EE
Available-for-sale equity
investments AfthEERERE 41,250 - - - - 41,250
Long term investments RERE (41,250) = = = = (41,250)
Equity investments at fair
value through profit ~ BRBREAAEHNE
or loss ZREEERE 560 - - - - 560
Short term investments ~ BHRE (560) - - - = (560)
Negative goodwil aEE - - 99,590 - - 99,590
Interests in associates RBE DR 2 ER = = 413,001 = (630) 412 371
511,961
Liabilities/equity 8/ #n
Investment property
revaluation reserve REMESLERE = (317,844) = = = (317,844)
Share option reserve BRERE - - - 16,800 - 16,800
Investment revaluation
reserve REELFHE 4,094 = = = = 4,094
Available-for-sale equity
investments revaluation AT SR H R E
reserve Efh{EE (4,094) = = = = (4,094)
Retained profits RE R = 317,844 503,528 (16,800) (630) 803,942
Minority interests DHURRER - - 9,063 - = 9,063

511,961
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31 December 2005 —ZEZHF+-_A=+—H
2.4Summary of the Impact of Changes in QAT RSB EIHE @)
Accounting Policies (continued)
(b) Effect on the balances of equity at 1 January 2004 and (b) HR-—ZEZENFE—A—HR=-Z=H
at 1 January 2005 F-PA—BEZEHRZTE
Effect of adopting
RATIRR 38
HKASs 32
and 39 HKAS 40 HKFRS 3
EAeT BA

ERIE32% EAE BRHRE
RE39%  ERIFE40% R HE35%

Share of
Changesin  Surplus on opening
classification  revaluation adjustments
Effect of new policies of equity of investment Negative of an
(Increase/(decrease)) investments  properties goodwill associate Total
Ptk
FRRZE BHMRE RENZ HENT
(i, (BD)) PEEY EffRH BHE  zB9RE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THET TR THT
1 January 2004 RZZZME—A—-AH
Investment property revaluation reserve & & 4% Bt - (176,290) - - (176,290)
Retained profits RE R A - 176,290 - - 176,290
1 January 2005 R-ETHF-f—H
Investment property revaluation reserve & & 4% Bt - (223,180) - - (223,180)
Investment revaluation reserve RESHRE 6,485 - - - 6,485
Available-for-sale equity investments  EIEHERFIERE
revaluation reserve EhiEE (6,485) - - - (6,485)
Retained profits RE R - 223,180 538,383 1,852 763,415
Minority interests DERRES = = 10,712 = 10,712

550,947
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2.4Summary of the Impact of Changes in

Accounting Policies (continued)

(c) Effect on the consolidated income statement for the
years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004

248THREH

() BEZ=

=547

&=

ZBE »)

ZZ2RFER-_FFNF+=

A=t-BLFEGRERERZEE

Effect of adopting
RATHR% 228
HKAS 1 HKAS 40 HKFRS 2 HKFRS 3
E# i
Ehes ERest BEEE BRRE
BRI E15 ERIZA0% ERIH2 ER|E35%
Discontinuation Share of
Share of Surplus on Employee  of recognition opening
post-tax profits  revaluation of share  of negative  adjustments
and losses of ~ investment option  goodwill as of an
Effect of new policies associates properties scheme income associate Total
JEdh
BEnd FEfh
ZBH % RENE E& SHETE BENT
HRR2%E wARER BB B EE BRAMWA ZHAE an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TET TATL TATL THL THTL
Year ended 31 December 2005 HEZZETRETZA=T—HILFE
Decrease in other income
and gains A AR R D - - - (13,411) - (13,411)
Increase in fair value of
investment properties REMEARLEEM = 128,111 - - - 128,111
Increase in other operating
expenses Efhimas g - - (16,300) = = (16,800)
Decrease in amortisation of
negative goodwill arising WERENFEEL
from acquisition of associates B EHHH L - - - (23,093) - (23,093)
Increase/(decrease) in share of  E{EESE A A&
profits and losses of associates ~ REBEM,/ (5 ) (26,280) 13,792 - - (2,482) (14,970)
(Increase)/decrease in tax BB (Em) /R 26,280 (20,223) - - - 6,057
Total increase/(decrease) in profit E#&1m,/ (54) 2% - 121,680 (16,800) (36,504) (2,482) 65,894
Attributable to: TS
Equity holders of the parent ~ SAFEEBEA = 94,664 (16,800) (36,504) (2,482) 38,878
Minority interests SRR ER - 27,016 - - - 27,016
- 121,680 (16,800) (36,504) (2,482) 65,894
Increase/(decrease) in basic SYNSIES L2
earnings per share attributable ~ #74 AfEfh
to ordinary equity holders of RER
the parent BN/ (F2) ~ HK3.82 cents ALl (HKO.68 cents &1ll) (HK1.47 cents L) (HKO.10 cents 1ll) HK1.57 cents 1l
Increase/(decrease) in diluted ~ BAREEER
earnings per share attributable ~ #74 ATE/E
to ordinary equity holders of ~ Ef#E
the parent BRIEM/ (HD) ~ HK3.82 cents Il (HK0.68 cents AL (HK1.47 cents (L) (HKO.10 cents F&{Ll) HK1.57 cents il
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2.4Summary of the Impact of Changes in QA8 BREBHEFEZHBE @)
Accounting Policies (continued)
(c) Effect on the consolidated income statement for the () HEZ=-ZSEBRER=-ZBZENFE+=
years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 (continued) B=+—HBLEFEGERRRZTE
(&)

Effect of adopting

BT HIBR 2

HKAS 1 HKAS 40
BRgG BEES
RIS X 5405%
Share of Surplus on

post-tax profits revaluation
and losses of of investment

Effect of new policies associates properties Total
EhEE AT
ZBRH % REWZE
FBR 2 E R B R EREHK M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FH&EIT
Year ended 31 December 2004 HE_ZZMNF
TZA=+—RHIEFE
Increase in fair value of
investment properties REMERN LB - 155,844 155,844
Increase in loss on disposal of
investment properties HEREYE 2 HEE I = (2,348) (2,348)
Increase/(decrease) in share of A B 2 2 B A1) I B 18 18 A0
profits and losses of associates yas:7y (49,463) 9,218 (40,245)
(Increase)/decrease in tax FR| (g m) m 49,463 (8,811) 40,652
Total increase in profit i A8 hN 4B FR - 153,903 153,903
Attributable to: T’J'UJWE'
Equity holders of the parent NRIEZEB A - 67,782 67,782
Minority interests Q%ZHX%%EL = 86,121 86,121
- 153,903 153,903
Increase in basic earnings per BRI ERAER
share attributable to ordinary A AEG
equity holders of the parent TR E AR R TG N - HK2.73 cents 1l HK2.73cents il

Increase in diluted earnings per AR EmER
share attributable to ordinary BB ARG
equity holders of the parent AR 55 2 838 0 - HK2.72 cents 1l HK2.72cents il
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or indirectly,
controls more than half of its voting power or issued share capital
or controls the composition of its board of directors; or over which
the Company has a contractual right to exercise a dominant
influence with respect to that entity’s operation and financial
policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any

impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is

in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group's interests in
associates are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,

less any impairment losses.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company'’s interests in associates are treated as non-current assets

and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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HANERRGAFKEBA N EEAREDHE
BERRNEBR . ZERFR - EGEEER
BER L ARERBE AR 2B IRIBES T2
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HABEEREBER LK.

ARBZWamk BRBE AR ZEE ETAZ
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

2005 Annual Report

Shenzhen Investment Limited

Policies(continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
represents the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities

assumed as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is

on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. In
the case of associates, goodwill is included in the carrying amount
thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset on consolidated
balance sheet.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units. Each

unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated:

e represents the lowest level within the Group at which the

goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes; and

e is not larger than a segment based on either the Group’s
primary or the Group’s secondary reporting format determined
in accordance with HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”.
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HEEmEE MY SHERDFR#R 2 BEIIAGE
BERABERAC
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is

on or after 1 January 2005 (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the

carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-

generating unit retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a

subsequent period.

Goodwill previously eliminated against the consolidated

reserves

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 “Business Combinations” in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries and associates was
eliminated against the consolidated retained profits in the year of
acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against the consolidated retained profits and is not
recognised in income statement when all or part of the business
to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-

generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Be (&)

HBEABA-_ZEZTRF-—A-—AHZEZ
BABE (B

BEDREGTEMEERcReELEM GR
SELBNER) 2 WEIREER HIREE
HEM REELBNUER) 2T KEIZE IR
HERE(E A& BRI ER R

MEBAKBOReELEN CREELEUE
B) MZ Bz XBREE B E AEERTH
EXB 2 BER BAHERBEM I EmERE
ARBZREE-FELBER T L& BB
BIIHEXGZHREBEERMRE ZASES

BRI E-

MR EER OREBRE TSR ERBMER-

EAEGEREHHE 2 HE

R_ZET—FRNSTEBLERFE05%R (XS
Bt 2 B W EE 4 2 R B R W Y8 & =) I B
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

2005 Annual Report

Shenzhen Investment Limited

Policies (continued)

Negative goodwill (applicable to the year ended 31
December 2004)

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
associates represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the

date of acquisition, over the cost of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of
future losses and expenses that are identified in the acquisition
plan and that can be measured reliably, but which do not represent
identifiable liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that portion of
negative goodwill is recognised as income in the consolidated
income statement when the future losses and expenses are

recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to identifiable
expected future losses and expenses as at the date of acquisition,
negative goodwill is recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a systematic basis over the remaining average useful
life of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The amount
of any negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the acquired

non-monetary assets is recognised as income immediately.

In the case of associates, any negative goodwill not yet recognised
in the consolidated income statement is included in the carrying
amount thereof, rather than as a separately identified item on the

consolidated balance sheet.

On disposal of subsidiaries or associates, the gain or loss on disposal
is calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of disposal,
including the attributable amount of negative goodwill which has
not been recognised in the consolidated income statement and
any relevant reserves as appropriate. Any attributable negative
goodwill previously credited to the capital reserve at the time of
acquisition is written back and included in the calculation of the

gain or loss on disposal.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Negative goodwill (applicable to the year ended 31
December 2004) (continued)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 3, previously recognised negative
goodwill was derecognised at 1 January 2005 against the opening
balance of retained profits.

Excess over the cost of business combinations (applicable
to business combinations for which the agreement date is

on or after 1 January 2005)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries and associates (previously
referred to as negative goodwill), after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in the income statement.

The excess for associates is included in the Group’s share of the
associates’ profit or loss in the period in which the investments

are acquired.
Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.

AEE (BE-22RF+-A=1+—HIL
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued

asset.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than constructions in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the income statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of the item
can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an

additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is

transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

10% to 25%

9% to 20%

10% to 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery
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¥ BERBEEE RSS2 BERREER
=B FTIE N 218 B 2 ARRE R SEHbat &
ZEBABBRENERBE ZREINKAR-

WE BEMRBEEZEHINEESHFHRE
""""" S B R R T o fi o 4P AR RR T J2 DA SR A RS A - 1R M
AEEER BABE SO IRERNEE
R R P bR R R T EA ARG RBE
BBt AR - REEEREER B
EHENBRCEESHHEBIEBINEE
BRERBEIESFHEE

WEZSRYE BE MREEE 2 G AE
REMNEREAMEER A S AEEERER
B FEZETRFRMT:

T RIEF & F 8
HEMEEE 20%

R KB RRE 10% —25%
TE 9% —20%
5 e g 10% —25%

2005 4F 4

RIERERDE



B RS ER R

Notes to Financial Statements
31 December 2005 —EERF+_-_A=+—H

25FESHHR2ME @)

2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

2005 Annual Report

Shenzhen Investment Limited

Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Constructions in progress represents buildings under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Constructions in progress are reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or

investment properties when completed and ready for use.
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions

at the balance sheet date.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of

the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between the
fair value of the property at that date and its previous carrying

amount is recognised in the income statement.
Properties under development

Properties under development for which pre-sale contracts were
entered into on or after 1 January 2005 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost includes all costs attributable to such
development, including financing charges. Impairment is assessed
by the directors based on prevailing market prices, on an individual
property basis.

Properties under development, for which pre-sales have not yet
commenced, are stated at cost less any impairment losses. Cost
includes all costs attributable to such development, including
financing charges.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Properties under development (continued)

The Group applied the transitional provision of HK- Int 3 that
permitted that properties under development for which pre-sale
contracts were entered into before 1 January 2005 are stated at
cost plus attributable profits less sales deposits/instalments received
and any foreseeable losses. Properties under development which
have been pre-sold are classified under current assets. When
properties under development have been pre-sold, the total
estimated profit is apportioned over the entire period of
construction to reflect the progress of the development. On this
basis, profit recognised on properties pre-sold during the period is
calculated by reference to the proportion of construction costs
incurred up to the balance sheet date to the estimated total
construction costs to completion, limited to the amount of sales
deposits/instalments received under legally binding contracts at

the balance sheet date, with due allowances for contingencies.
Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportioning of the
total land and development cost attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value is estimated by the directors based

on prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices

less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line

basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payment under operating leases is initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a

finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets

Vehicle licences acquired by the Group is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 15 to 20 years.

Investments and other financial assets

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2004:

The Group classified its equity investments, other than subsidiaries
and associates, as long term investments and short term
investments.

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading investments in listed and

unlisted equity securities intended to be held on a long term basis.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

2005 Annual Report

Shenzhen Investment Limited

Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Long term investments (continued)

Listed securities are stated at their fair values on the basis of their
guoted market prices at the balance sheet date, on an individual
investment basis. Unlisted securities are stated at their estimated
fair values, on an individual basis. The estimated fair values of
unlisted investments are determined by the directors having regard
to, inter alia, the prices of the most recent reported sales or
purchases of the securities, or comparison of price/earnings ratios
and dividend yields of the securities with those of similar listed
securities, with allowance made for the lower liquidity of the

unlisted securities.

The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of a
security are dealt with as movements in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the security is sold, collected, or otherwise disposed
of, or until the security is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss derived from the security recognised in
the investment revaluation reserve, together with the amount of
any further impairment, is charged to the income statement in

the period in which the impairment arises.
Short term investments

Short term investments are investments in equity securities held
for trading purposes and are stated at their fair values on the
basis of their quoted market prices at the balance sheet date, on
an individual investment basis. The gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of a security are credited or charged to

the income statement in the period in which they arise.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Short term investments (continued)

Applicable to the year ended 31 December 2005:

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets after initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits
to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the
category “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses on
investments held for trading are recognised in the income
statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as

well as through the amortisation process.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
in listed and unlisted equity securities that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified in any of the other two
categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value, with gains of losses recognised
as a separate component of equity until the investment is
derecognised or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in

equity is included in the income statement.
Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing

models.

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year
ended 31 December 2005)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year
ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the

impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group
is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its

amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting
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Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year
ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unguoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because
its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not

reversed.
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity
to the income statement. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to the year
ended 31 December 2005)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset

or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”

arrangement; or
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to the year
ended 31 December 2005) (continued)

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,

but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that
the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an
asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of

the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction

costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

2005 Annual Report

Shenzhen Investment Limited

Policies (continued)
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (applicable to the
year ended 31 December 2005)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between

the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly

in equity.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or

paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liabilities arises from goodwill or the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from negative goodwill or the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and
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Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely,
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable

entity and the same taxation authority.

Fr&® (&)

s MEEMBARLBERRRERR A
HRERZEMNS BEHBEE 2 HRE
DA IRy 22 R 10 R 38 B 2R R 8k [0 B B B =
R EHRAERHEERTEN SR

EERIAE E 2 REERSEEE B ELRT
I HIRL 2 FE AR Bk ) N B e DA P sl B 1 IR
FEEEF B A AR - AE R TR 2 IR AE TR
HEEDNEFEE BB XRERTOE
B CABR P S BB IR AT IR & E R A B A B R

=7
o

BEERBREENBBDRANERREREE
FEEABHM R E RN EEHEHESL
BEREZHE (RREE) tE-

AR LA SR BT 2 R < BVEIRIR A
ENAHRAA ER BREE MEERREBR
Rl — R E B & [F — SRR - RIEETR R E
ENREHRAAESSEH-



B RS ER R

Notes to Financial Statements
31 December 2005 —EERF+_-_A=+—H

25FESHHRZME @)

2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to profit or loss. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the

date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign

operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the

weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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B RS ER R

Policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs capitalised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from the sale of properties, industrial and commercial
products, when the significant risk and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods and properties sold;

(b) income from the pre-sale of properties under development
for which the pre-sale contracts were entered into before 1
January 2005, when the construction work has progressed
to a stage where the ultimate realisation of profit can be
reasonably determined and on the basis set out under the
accounting policy headed “Properties under development”;
pre-sale of properties under development for which the pre-
sale contract that are entered into on or after 1 January 2005

is not recognised as revenue after 1 January 2005;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) income from the provision of transportation services, when

the transportation services have been rendered;

(e) services income, when the relevant services have been

rendered;

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to receive

payment has been established.
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
balance sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved

by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a

liability when they are proposed and declared.
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) has joint control over the Group;
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(@)

(d)

(e)

(f)

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,

and short term highly liquid investments which are readily

convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to

an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a maturity of

generally within three months when acquired, less banks overdrafts

which are repayable on demand and from an integral part of the

Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents

comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by the management using the Black-
Scholes model, further details of which are given in note 34. In
valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price

of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to
the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period. If the share options granted vested immediately, the
Group recognised the fair value of the share options in the period

in which the options are granted.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance conditions are satisfied.
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Policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if
a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards before 7 November 2002 and
has applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted on or
after 1 January 2005.
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2.5Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)
Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group'’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting

fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China participates
in the central pension scheme (the “CPS") operated by the local
municipal government for all of its staff. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute 8% to 20% of their payroll costs to the
CPS. The contributions are charged to the income statement as

they become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect

on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level of
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could material affect
the net present value used in the impairment test.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more likely
than not) that future taxable profits will be available against which
the unused tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence.
Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the
deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors
are also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the periods in
which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets and related financial models and budgets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and to the extent that there is
insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will
be available within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the
carry forward tax losses, the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to the income statement.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or

services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does

not qualify as investment property.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties and

available-for-sale investments

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, management determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from (i) current prices in an
active market for properties of different nature, conditions or
locations by reference to available market information; (ii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii) discounted cash
flow projections, based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
derived from the terms of any existing lease and other contracts,
and (where possible) from external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current market assessments

of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.
Impairment test of assets

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least on an
annual basis. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order

to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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4. Segment Information PEEHR b
M

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary DREERAEBRRAAEE 2 FE2MEE- R
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining the TR TE 2N 5 [ 4t [ 4 ) s - WA TR BR B P BT A E
Group'’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the ZE B MEEARRBEEME ZHED ﬁ
segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are FHo R ANE BB IBI0% 2 YA Th 2R B B B A RE ﬁ
attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets. ZBFE BAREEEBIBEI0% 2 EEHRIF IR i

No further geographical segment information is presented as over
90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in
Mainland China, and over 90% of the Group’s assets are located

in Mainland China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary details of

the business segments are as follows:

BeFUt WEZHE— TR ORER-

AEBEREXRGIEBREXZH BRI ZE
an M ARTS A TR RS R B R E - B E
SERB D BEE R Em &R 2 RS
FBEM HERME 2 Ak & EHREE R HE
MENR- XD BZREWT:

(a) the property development segment engages in development (@) MEBRER RET TEREZEE
of residential, industrial and commercial properties; Fi

(b) the property investment segment invests in residential,
industrial and commercial properties for their rental income

potential;

() the property management segment engages in the
management of both Group developed properties and non-

Group developed properties;

(d) the transportation services segment consists of the provision
of passenger and freight transportation services, automobile

maintenance and other related services;

(e) the manufacturing segment engages in manufacture and sale

of industrial and commercial products;

(f)  the infrastructure investment segment invests in infrastructure

projects of power generation and toll roads;

(b) MERBEXBREZABEBAMT2EE T
ERAEEET

(0 MEEERXBHEEEEASEERNIFH
SEBRZET:

RBERREEGBRIEHTEREER
B RE M R EAMARRE AR

—~
o
=

\

(e) REXVERRENRHETIRZMBAREM:

(i EEREFXBREZHEEAFBARKE

NS

N,
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4. Segment Information (continued)

(g) the information technology segment engages in the cable

television network transmission and the provision of

technological services; and

(h) the "others”

segment comprises, principally, building

construction and other businesses.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to

the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then

prevailing market prices.

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and certain asset,

liability and expenditure information for the Group’s business

segments for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004.

DEER #)

(9) BMBEREBERHARERBEEE R

RER RS &

(hy TEA]D
Hp RS-

DR 2 HE RERIIIZA

REEHETE=TZ

E 3 k|

TREINAGERBEC

}

THER=-

PRIRERBTFREETRREHR

FH_A=T—HLEFEEBIBZWA G

(BR) RETEE AERAXER:

Year ended Bz-2%nf Property Property Property Transportation Infrastructure  Information
31 December 2005 TZRA=T-HLEE development investment management services Manufacturing  investment  technology Others Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
NERR NERE NEER RS #E EBRE EARE B 4§
TR TR T#n TEn TEn T#n TR TEn Tn
Segment revenue: Pl
Sales to customers HETEP 1,798,568 299,643 295,594 148,540 387,085 - 74005 3,003,435
Segment results before increase infair Azt RENEAL
value of investment properties EmzaERE 565,024 213,176 9,000 241 (2,260) - 4,967 811,378
Increase in fair value of investment RANE
properties RAfEEM - 128,111 - - - - - 128,111
Segment resuls after increase in fair STAREWEDA
value of investment properties EMkzABRE 565,024 341,287 9,000 241 (2,260) - 4,967 939,489
Interest income, dividend income and ~~ F EHA-REKAR
unallocated gains, net AABRAFE 90,187
Unallocated expenses AHBRR (97,514)
Finance costs BERK (178,535)
Share of profits and losses EERER TR
of associates RER 79,595 20,283 1,044 2,841 (67,589) 260,535 (52,813) - 243,902
Profit before tax B AaH 997,529
Tax G (152,479)
Profit for the year gl 845,050
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4. Segment Information (continued)

4, 7 EER )

Business segments (continued) EX Sk 0E=))
Year ended Bz-2%nf Property Property Property Transportation Infrastructure  Information
31 December 2005 TZAZT-HALEE development  investment management services Manufacturing  investment  technology Others Total
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
NEER NERE NEER EqfRH HE EERE EANE At &g
THR THR TEn THR TR TR TER TR TEn
Assets and liablities BERAR
Segment assets PREE 1,813,331 2,857,774 59,712 210,092 354,641 18,272 - 52,076 5,365,898
Interests in associates BENTER 293,954 84,759 7,855 52,300 222,010 2,236,603 147,444 1,695 3,046,620
Unallocated assets APBAE 3,656,857
Total assets EELR 12,069,375
Seqment liabilities AHARE 671,135 164,505 153,302 102,784 178,703 1,931 - um 1,204,132
Unallocated liablities AAERE 4,473,345
Total liabilties afEgE 5,767,477
Other segment information: HfAEEH:
Depreciation e 6,328 7,160 5843 31,883 13,170 - - 4,920 69,304
Amortisation of vehicle licenses - pEd - - - 2347 - - - - 234
Impairment losses recognised in the WaRER
income statement LBERE - - - 2,631 1,952 - - - 4,583
Increase in fair value of investment VIEZE
properties RAfEEm - (128,111) - - - - - - (128,111)
Capital expenditure BAYH 823,745 71,464 3,867 38,318 40,717 - - 19,794 997,905
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4. Segment Information (continued)

4, 7 EER )

Business segments (continued) EX Sk 0E=))
Year ended HEZTMETZA Property Property Property  Transportation Infrastructure Information
31 December 2004 (restated) S+—HIEEE (E7)  development investment  management services  Manufacturing investment technology Others Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NEERE NERE NEER EERK 8 ERRA ZARR it ]
T T ThT T Thr ThT T Thr ThT
Segment revenue: Al
Sales to customers HETHIER 890,307 279,383 239,604 144,796 375,708 - - 7033 2,000,131
Segment results before increase infair Kzt RENERLE
value of investment properties EhzaBxe 202,281 150,770 13,500 11,083 3,063 - - 105 380,762
Increase in fair value of investment
properties RENEAAEEEN - 155,844 - - - - - - 155,844
Segment results after increase infair ~ sTARENERL
value of investment properties EMkzABRE 202,281 306,614 13,500 11,043 3,063 - - 105 536,606
Interest income, dividend income and ~~ F A REKAR
unallocated gains, net AHBUAFE 7,781
Unallocated expenses AAERY (82,360)
Finance costs BERA (115,034)
Share of profits and losses of associates ~ JEMEBAR B FI RE#E 31,921 8,025 637 2,865 13,484 256,767 20,555 - 334,254
Amortisation of negative goodwil WERENAEEY
recognised as income arising from BRIAZ
acquisition of associates BHEEY 23,093
Profit before tax Iy 769,346
Tax i) (57,878)
Profit o the year ERRT 711,468
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4. Segment Information (continued)

4, 7 EER )

Business segments (continued) XBo8 (B)
Year ended HEZTMETZA Property Property Property  Transportation Infrastructure Information
31 December 2004 (restated) S+—HIEEE (E7)  development investment  management services  Manufacturing investment technology Others Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NEERE NERE NEER EERK 8 ERRA ZARR ) g
T L ThT L Thr ThT T Thr ThT
Assets and liabilties EERBE
Segment assefs HHEE 1,855,529 2,558,010 114,751 152,249 331,894 21534 - 238,651 5,278,618
Interests in associates BENTER 242,876 89,516 6,157 66,017 292,345 1,791,477 180,020 185 2,668,593
Unallocated assets AAEEE 3,384,560
Total asses BELT 11,331,771
Segment liabilities AHARE 614,474 163,341 166,402 154,303 200,544 1,949 10 70,347 1,371,370
Unallocated liabilites AAEAE 4,872,220
Total liabilties BE4E 6,243,590
Other seqment information: HftARER:
Depreciation nE 3,720 7,002 5,589 33,800 15,367 - - 5722 71,200
Amortisation of vehicle licenses BHREER - - - 2,107 - - - - 2107
Negative goodwill recognised as income B BARES
arising from acquisition of subsiciaries ~ WREAAMAZBEE  (13,409) - - - - - - - (13,409)
Increase in fair value of investment WERE
properties RAfEEM - (155,844) - - - - - - (155,844)
Capital expenditure LUS T 796,722 89,189 8430 19427 16,251 - - 11,709 941,728
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§ 5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. EXF HMWARKE
§ Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents proceeds WABNEERAEE 2 &£ IERBHED S
2 from the sale of properties, sale of commercial and industrial goods, HENFERITXEMMEHRE HelA 1
8 rental income, management fee income, income from the provision B A TR E b RS 2 WA R E UL A o

of transportation services and others.

3
£
g An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: REEZEFE HbWARKG 2 AT
g
E Group
2 AEE
3 2005 2004
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FTET FEIT
(Restated)
(&E71)
Revenue = 30
Sale of properties HE Y% 1,798,568 890,307
Sale of commercial and industrial goods 8 & B 3% & T % & 387,085 375,708
Gross management fee income BEBEIUA 295,594 239,604
Gross rental income from KEMEZ
investment properties MW A B 299,643 279,383
Income from transportation services B RIS WA 148,540 144,796
Others HAh 74,005 70,333
3,003,435 2,000,131
Other income H g A
Gross rental income from property, I E RS L
plant and equipment MW A E 23,318 21,789
Bank interest income RATH B WA 71,335 56,763
Dividend income from investments: REIREZREHBA:
Listed investments EmRE 132 395
Unlisted investments FLEMIRE 2,115 1,987
Interest income from loans receivable JEU EZk 2 F B Ua A 671 13,642
Others HAh 33,938 53,155
131,509 147,731
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME BE R
plant and equipment FEIEE 2 - 1,214
Negative goodwill recognised as income: HRAEBRAZ BEE:
From acquisition of subsidiaries U B B BB A ) 17 - 10,046
From acquisition of an additional WE—RMBAE 2
interest in a subsidiary pripe 17 - 3,363
Gain on disposal of associates k=N € 10,787 =
Exchange gains SN 2 5,147 601
15,934 15,224

Other income and gains H A R e 147,443 162,955
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6. Profit Before Tax 6. BRHATEF ®
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): REBZERBAEFE MR GtA) THIE3E {‘i,“
BER: g
2005 2004 -
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 “
B & FHxT FHT =
(Restated) g
(&7) &
Cost of inventories sold HEFERAR 1,371,760 920,722 %
Cost of services provided 1R AR 75 A AN 236,631 135,710
Auditors’ remuneration 2% EXAM B 5 6,013 6,305
Depreciation e 14 69,304 71,200
Provision for bad and doubtful debts NIEERBE 10,752 2,730
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value FEREZAIZRFE 9,353 11,879
Direct operating expenses (including WHKEEMEZ
repairs and maintenance) arising on BEELEH
rental-earning investment properties (BIEHERIRE) 41,710 51,214
Impairment of items of property, E NI
plant and equipment I B RE 14 4,583 -
Loss on disposal of investment properties H&E&REY S 2 E51E 3,239 4,627
(Gains)/losses on disposal of items of HEME HE M RE
property, plant and equipment BBz (W) EiE 4,856 (1,214)
Minimum lease payments under T REFZ
operating leases in respect of A
land and buildings HEHE 11,133 7,479
Amortisation of vehicle licences * VBB hE AR g 15 2,347 2,107
Fair value losses, net: NiAFEEE
Equity investments at fair value FRBRBEARN
through profit or loss AECERMERE 28 2,340 -
Employee benefits expense (excluding BERMAX (T8
directors’ remuneration — note 8): REEME —KIFES)
Wages and salaries IERH= 279,581 273,964
Equity-settled share option expenses LA BR 3 1 A B IR R S 7,080 =
Pension scheme contributions BRIRNEETEI K 27,727 26,697
Less: Forfeited contributions R IR - =
Net: Pension scheme contributions ** RIREFTEIHFOFER > 27,727 26,697
314,388 300,661
Foreign exchange differences, net HNEZFRF (5.147) (601)
Bad and doubtful debts recovered Bk e 2 REER - (2,601)
Reversal of bad debts written off ZEARFF RO - (9,052)
Bank interest income ER1TH B U A (71,335) (56,763)
Dividend income from investments: HE R B A
Listed investments W& (132) (395)
Unlisted investments JELMIRE (2,115) (1,987)
Interest income from loans receivable FEWE 2 F WA (671) (13,642)
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries o & W B A Rl E1E 36 - 25,212
Gain on disposal of associates k=N BN bl (10,787) =
Negative goodwill recognised
as income:*** BRBRAZ BRGE x>
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries & 5 U EEHKI B A A 17 - (13,409)
Arising from acquisition of associates R B W RS A A 21 - (23,093)
Gross rental income from investment KREMERS
properties LNt (299,643) (279,383)

Net rental income from land and buildings £ & & F/F & W A (19,161) (17,247)
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6. Profit Before Tax (continued) 6. BR®LAIGEF ()
* The amortisation of vehicle licences for the year is included in “Cost of sales” on & RNEERIHTEEBREERMAGERERZ [HEKX

the face of the consolidated income statement.

W At 31 December 2005, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce

its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2004: Nil).

***  The negative goodwill arising from acquisition of subsidiaries and associates
recognised as income in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2004 is included in “Other income and gains” and “Amortisation of
negative goodwill arising from acquisition of associates” on the face of the

consolidated income statement, respectively.

*k

KKK

RJBRBZAe

RoBTRF+A=— B ARELEELREHR
TS ERARBEZ RIS HBHHK (ST T
) -

R-ZEZNF+-A=+—BLFE ARBHREQR
REERRELAT NG RARERRBRAZEHE
DRESAWRERT A TEMBA RS & [U i
e ARIEEZ AREEHE] -

7. Finance Costs 7. BE A
Group
KEE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTBT T T
Interest on: FEZH:
Bank loans wholly repayable ERhFERNBHEEZ
within five years RITEFF B 197,305 142,815
Other loans HaERFE 3,289 1,776
Total interest F B 4858 200,594 144,591
Less: Interest capitalised B B AMEFE (22,059) (29,557)

178,535 115,034
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8. Directors’ Remuneration 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is as

EEME

REFRE ETRARARIGEIE1611GZES
MeRENT :

follows:

Group

AEH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T
Fees: e 1,645 700

Other emoluments: HEb e

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ 28 R E W H = 4,929 4,382
Employee share option benefits EBBEIREN = 9,720 -
Pension scheme contributions IRIRE T EI 3K 175 81
14,824 4,463
16,469 5,163

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in the income statement for the year,
was determined as at the date of the grant and was included in

the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

RAFR ETEFRHAKE 2 RF AR
FIRE AR B E R B I - S BB B TS R Y
i34 - ZERBELONE CRAFRERA
R DERTEEAE YEeERELLIES
ke
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¢ 8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EEME »
§ (a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BYFEHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during REEENBIFRTESHEAT:

the year were as follows:

Shenzhen Investment Limited

Employee
share option
Fees benefits Total
==
e B IR RE A 2 B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET
2005 —Z2EHF
Wong Po Yan HIRR 250 180 430
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RIZEE 250 180 430
Li Wai Keung TR 250 180 430
750 540 1,290
2004 —EENWEF
Wong Po Yan BIRR 200 - 200
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RIEEE 200 = 200
Li Wai Keung FER 100 - 100
500 - 500
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent REWEENEMBIIIENTESE 2

non-executive directors during the year (2004: Nil). “ZTEPOF HE) °
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

8. EEM& »
(b) BITESREHITES

Salaries, Employee

allowances share Pension
and benefits option scheme
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total
He RBMK B8 B#iE
ne BENRE BREMNS T B mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER  TEx  TER TER TR
2005 —EERF
Executive directors: HITES:
Hu Aimin HER - 1,250 1,800 53 3,103
Zhang Yijun REY = 1,235 1,500 41 2,776
Liu Jianhua Bl - 618 1,200 33 1,851
Zhao Mingfeng HAE - 628 1,200 24 1,852
Liang Kaiping 2R - 619 1,200 24 1,843
Xu Ruxin E 260 350 1,050 - 1, 660
Zhu Huoyang KNE 260 229 1,050 = 1,539
520 4,929 9,000 175 14,624
Non-executive directors EHTES
Lee Yip Wah, Peter FxE 250 - 180 = 430
Hu Zuoyuan TAET 125 - - - 125
895 4,929 9,180 175 15,179
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31 December 2005 Z=—ZEZTRF+=-A=+—H
¢ 8. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 8. EEME »
§ (b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) HITESERFHITES (&)
g (continued)
s
;E Salaries, Employee
- allowances share Pension
;E, and benefits option scheme
>
< Fees in kind benefits contributions Total
E Fe 2R B8 Bie
@ e ENFE BRERR HEREEN s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FTAT TAT TAT TAT
2004 —ZTTMF
Executive directors: HITES:
Hu Aimin HER - 1,274 - 22 1,296
Zhang Yijun KEHY - 248 - 17 265
Liu Jianhua je - 475 - 10 485
Zhao Mingfeng HREZ - 449 - 9 458
Liang Kaiping 2HF - 464 - 9 473
Xu Ruxin o - 260 - - 260
Zhu Huoyang RAE - 260 - — 260
Liu Zixian 2+% - 952 - 14 966
- 4,382 - 81 4,463
Non-executive director FHITER
Lee Yip Wah, Peter ES 200 = = = 200
200 4,382 - 81 4,663
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed RAREEN - B = F R R B REE A
to waive any remuneration during the year. &z ZHEe
9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. TERSFHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included five REEzREZGE=aFEERERE (ZEEN
(2004: five) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out FRR)EE ZSEZZ2MEFBEIIR X

in note 8 above. MosE8e
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10.Tax

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2004: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the locations in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

Major subsidiaries of the Group operate in Shenzhen, Mainland

China, which are subject to the corporate income tax rate of 15%.

10. B 18

REB W BEBBELEAERTOGEHN - B LR
FALESAREBTEFNEHBEE (CFTETOF:
) o Fh B AP PR RR B MR IR IR IR IR A S
BEMBER CHERLBITERAN EERE
RS

AEEz ERHBERREFTBEARERINEE %
15%BMEEMAFH

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Group: REH:
Current — Hong Kong BVER — &%

Overprovision in prior years EFEBEEE - (10,435)
Current — Mainland China BN ER — A B K B 114,114 79,981
Deferred Mainland China Corporate  #EiEFR B AFED TS

Income Tax (note 32) (KF5E32) 38,365 (11,668)

Total tax charge for the year REFEHIBS HAERE 152,479 57,878
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é 10.Tax (continued) 10. B8 (&)
§ A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit TXFrE A LOEES Rt EEARRETET A
g before income tax at the statutory income tax rates to the income WA Z FTEMTERX REAEERFEFEZH
w tax expense at the Group’s effective income tax rate for the year is BPTS B Rt E TS B A I8 F 2 < ¥ BR
E as follows:
g 2005 2004
F HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
E FET FAET
Profit before tax R 5 A g ) 997,529 769,346
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to %@ BN A A (5% A
profits in the provinces concerned ZEMBEGTE 2BIE 154,092 112,024
Higher tax rate for specific provinces BEEOh KA ER
or local authority ISl (885) 88
Profits and losses attributable =N o
to associates i A K B 18 (37,097) (49,201)
Incomes not subject to tax BRI R Z WA (23,159) (29,109)
Tax losses not recognised RIERZ TRIEEE 39,808 32,454
Tax loss utilised EERHIEEE (1,583) (1,229)
Expenses not deductible for tax DRI IB IR 2 F 2 20,392 2,886
Adjustments in respect of current tax of  BLATHIENHEA
previous periods TRIRIEH AR 911 (10,035)
BRAEBA BB EMR
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate Z 1A 152,479 15.3 57,878 7.5
The share of tax attributable to associates of approximately B & A B 2 R TR 5140 526,280,000/ 7T (=
HK$26,280,000 (2004: HK$49,463,000) is included in “Share of T PY4F:49,463,000/870) ' BELRE WK EIE
profits and losses of associates” on the face of the consolidated TR R & A B s N R EriE ] -
income statement.
11.Net Profit from Ordinary Activities N BARREREEARBLEBEER
Attributable to Equity Holders of the # F
Parent
The net profit from ordinary activities attributable to equity holders BHE-_ZERAF+-_A=1T—HILFESQF
of the parent for the year ended 31 December 2005 dealt with in R a AJEG B EEHB4EH] 147,390,000 7T
the financial statements of the Company was HK$147,390,000 —TEPIF:154,316,000/87T) ERARAE Z

(2004: HK$154,316,000) (note 35(b)). B sRR P IR (MfsE35(b)) o
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12.Dividends 12. BB
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Interim — HK2.00 cents (2004: fhHARR B — B @ A% 2.00/8 11

HK2.00 cents) per ordinary share —ZETPF:2.00810) 49,648 49,648
Adjustment to prior year's final dividend _E%F & RHEIR B 2 A% - 603

Proposed final — HK11.00 cents (2004:  #UKAHAMRE — B L HA%11.00785 1L
HK3.00 cents) per ordinary share (ZZEZ 4 :3.00%10) 273,066 74,472
322,714 124,723

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

13.Earnings per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount of 2004
is based on the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of parent. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

A diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 31
December 2005 has not been disclosed as no diluting events existed
during the year.

13.

REFFRRABREAR
RBFREG LHfE

FA R AR FEJE

BRAREERERAARGEER
27

:H@mwmwﬁwrtm BT
BARIERFREANRFACETEBBRIMNE

TG

—TENEEBREERNIIEREFAZEAR
EEERE ARIGAERS D%Dxlitlﬁﬁ?r?iz
EREIEFHHAFACETEBRR (BRI
AEBRERBNE) ARAEEEEEYE LHQ
BIETEAEREBARMRREBEREETE
38 A N S 35 R B

M S U R F I R RE RS
PEREF+-A=t+—BULEE SREEE
7o
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31 December 2005 —EERF+=-_A=+—H

13.Earnings per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

1B3.BRAREERREEAEGEBR
BR &)

SRREAR RSB TR T R

on:
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings 2R
Net profit attributable to ordinary equity At & &A%
holders of the parent,used in the basic ~ EARZ&F| z & A 7]
earnings per share calculation TRERFEA ARGER 534,339 422,561
Number of shares
BB EE
2005 2004
Shares 8p)
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AT E &R
shares in issue during the year used EXRRBMZFEA
in the basic earnings per share BETERRK
calculation I 19 AR BK 2,482,413,966  2,482,413,966
Effect of dilution — weighted average Bearg-Lake
number of ordinary shares: InEFH e
Share options i g - 5,952,105

2,482,413,966 2,488,366,071
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14.Property, Plant and Equipment

—EFRF+-A=+-H

B RS ER R

14.M% BERRE

Group Land and Land and
buildings in buildings in
Hong Kong Mainland China
under under Furniture,
medium term  medium term Leasehold fixtures Motor Plantand  Constructions
leases leases  improvements and equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LS 1 e U
REEREZ RPEAERE BE Bi-%E BE
THREF ZIBRET NEEB EL RE e ERIR L
THET THET THET T T TET TET TET
31 December 2005 “2RRE+A=1-H
At 31 December 2004 and RZZEME+-A=+-ARK
at 1 January 2005: R=ZTRE—F—H
Cost or valuation KA (EE 2,034 451,137 1,304 49,844 243,868 134,455 7,688 890,330
Accumulated depreciation 2EMERAE
and impairment (28) (30,011) (130) (36,204) (137,645) (39,997) - (244,015)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,006 421,126 1174 13,640 106,223 94,458 7,688 646,315
At 1 January 2005, net of WZEZHE-A-H"
accumulated depreciation TR ZE
and impairment FERAE 2,006 421,126 1,174 13,640 106,223 94,458 7,688 646,315
Additions NE = 24,633 2,776 8,400 24,434 33,591 4,709 98,543
Disposals HE = (16,538) = (755) (10,014) (1,205) (4,328) (32,840)
Transfer to investment properties  BEAERENE
(note 19) (Ft319) = (40,079) = = = = - (40,079)
Impairment RE - - - - (2,631) (1,952) - (4,583)
Depreciation provided during AERE
the year FERE - (14,956) (580) (9,859) (33,945) (9,964) - (69,304)
Exchange realignment ]S 50 7914 26 458 2,305 1,940 111 12,804
At 31 December 2005, net of RZEERE+-A=1-A"
accumulated depreciation TR 2E
and impairment FERAE 2,056 382,100 3,39 11,884 86,372 116,868 8,180 610,856
At 31 December 2005: RZETRE+-A=+-H:
Cost or valuation RAZfEE 2,086 410,479 4,109 54,647 222,845 154,058 8,180 856,404
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment 2BEHERAE (30) (28,379) (713) (42,763) (136,473) (37,190) - (245,548)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,056 382,100 3,39 11,884 86,372 116,868 8,180 610,856
Analysis of cost or valuation: KA EEA
At cost KA 52 246,177 4,109 54,647 222,845 154,058 8,180 690,068
At 1997 valuation —NAEERE 2,034 164,302 - - - - - 166,336
2,086 410,479 4,109 54,647 222,845 154,058 8,180 856,404
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14.Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

B RS ER R

14.ME-BEREE ®

Group Land and Land and
buildings in buildings in
Hong Kong  Mainland China
under under Furniture,
medium term  medium term Leasehold fixtures Motor Plantand  Constructions
leases leases  improvements and equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
r5E MR MR
REEREZ RTBAERE BE Bi-%E K&
THREF ZIHRETF NEEB ET AE e ERIE ag
Ti#r THET THET TiHx Tax Ti#r Ti#r Ti#x
(E31)
31 December 2004 “EEME+-A=+-H
At 31 December 2003 and =F+ZA=t-BR
at 1 January 2004: R_EZF
Cost or valuation KA (EE 2,346 469,616 = 36,829 261,487 153,137 35,329 958,744
Accumulated depreciation 2HENE
and impairment RRE (81) (29,860) - (35,491) (132,979) (31,191) - (229,602)
Net carrying amount EAFE 2,265 439,756 = 1,338 128,508 121,946 35,329 729,142
At 1 January 2004, net of R-ZEMFE-F-A"
accumulated depreciation TR ZE
and impairment FERAE 2,265 439,756 1338 128,508 121,946 35,329 729,142
Additions NE 1,577 1,304 14,259 19,151 8,969 19,731 74,991
Transfer from completed BRAEEKL
properties for sales (note 25) BHmE (Mz25) - 21,970 - - - - = 21,970
Disposals HE = (2,384) = (876) (5,397) (2,292) (4,923) (15,872)
Transfer to investment
properties (note 19) BRERENE (Fz19) - (22,161) - - - - = (22,161)
Transfer to properties under
development (note 18) ERERRERAE (1:18) - - - - - - (42,504) (42,504)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) 2 &M B2 7 (fif336) (263) (1,910 - (8,437) (1,504) (17,112) (29,226)
Reclassifications EEE] (11,605) - 17,064 448 (5,907) -
Depreciation provided
during the year REEMERRE - (14,710) (130) (9,803) (35,191) (11,366) - (71,200)
Exchange realignment EHHE 4 593 - 95 208 20 55 1175
At 31 December 2004, net of R=ZENF+=-A=+-A"
accumulated depreciation MR 2B ERAE
and impairment 2,006 421,126 1174 13,640 106,223 94,458 7,688 646,315
At 31 December 2004: RZFEME+-A=+-H:
Cost or valuation ARG E 2,034 451,137 1,304 49,844 243,868 134,455 7,688 890,330
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment ZEMERAE (28) (30,011) (130) (36,204) (137,645) (39,997) - (244,015)
Net carrying amount REE{E 2,006 421126 1,174 13,640 106,223 94,458 7,688 646,315
Analysis of cost or valuation: RASEEA:
At cost A 286,835 1,304 49,844 243,868 134,455 7,688 723,99
At 1997 valuation “NNEERE 2,034 164,302 166,336
2,034 451,137 1,304 49,844 243,868 134,455 7,688 890,330
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14.Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

—EFRF+-A=+-H

B RS ER R

14.ME-BEREE @

Certain of the Group’s land and buildings were revalued at 31
December 1997 by RHL Appraisal Ltd. (formerly known as Francis
Lau & Co., (Surveyors) Ltd.), an independent firm of professionally
qualified property valuers. These land and buildings were revalued
at their open market values based on their existing use. In the
opinion of the directors, there has been no material change in the

values of these land and buildings as at 31 December 2005.

Had these land and buildings been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been
approximately HK$113,000,000 (2004: HK$124,000,000), as
compared to their carrying amounts included in property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$99,000,000 (2004:
HK$107,000,000). At 31 December 2005, certain of the Group'’s
land and buildings with a net book value of approximately
HK$2,432,000 (2004: HK$28,000,000) were pledged to bank

AEBZETIHEBFER-ANAELFE =
A=t BARBIEEMEAEMKFITHE
BRERAR (AIESGAHEXREMITARA
) ETEG-ZELHEBT HIREBEARME
HEEREBR BEETEG - EFRR/AN_-F
Tﬂi—?— A=T—BLtHEEFZEELE

RANEZ 5 -ty RIEFIRE £ K AR R BT &5
AR EBRAEEEE A4113,000,0008 7T (ZFF
PU4F : 124,000,000/ 7T) - ABE W% R Mok
#HFrat 2 BRE{E4799,000,000/8 7T (ZZEZ Y
£:107,000,00087T) R=ZEZHF+ A=
+—H ﬁ%ﬁ%@i%ﬁ%@maz,ooo;&c (==
ZPO4F 128,000,000/ 70) 2 & T L RIEFE
FRYESRITE R Z R (FizE30)

loans (note 30).

Company Leasehold  Furniture Motor
improvements and fixtures vehicles Total
AAH e
MEEE RRRESE ARE PR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET TET
31 December 2005 —EERF+=-A=+-—H
At 1 January 2005, net of accumulated HR-_ZEZRF—HF—H-
depreciation KR RETTE — 445 1,776 2,221
Additions NE 593 209 802
Cost of disposals & KA - (37) (1,356) (1,393)
Depreciation written back on disposal HERBITE - 37 1,356 1,393
Depreciation provided during the year REEFEERE = (141) (671) (812)
At 31 December 2005, net of R-_ZEZERF
accumulated depreciation +=—A=+—8"
KR E2BINE 593 513 1,105 2,211
At 31 December 2005: RZZETERF
+=-—A=+—8:
Cost B AR 593 795 2,868 4,256
Accumulated depreciation 2RINE = (282) (1,763) (2,045)
Net carrying amount FREEE 593 513 1,105 2,211
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31 December 2005 Z=—ZEZTRF+=-A=+—H
§  14.Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 14.ME-BERZE @)
E Furniture
g Leasehold and Motor
Company improvements fixtures vehicles Total
©
£ HE
z RAF MEEE FRREE AE B
E HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
£ FHT FHT FHT FHT
g (Restated)
3 (E71)
31 December 2004 —EENFE+__A=+—H
At 1 January 2004: R-ZZEZNF—H—H
Cost DN - 585 3,486 4,071
Accumulated depreciation 2 E — (366) (1,678) (2,044)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 219 1,808 2,027
At 1 January 2004, net of accumulated RZ-ZEZMF—H—H-
depreciation KR ZBITE - 219 1,808 2,027
Additions NE - 319 739 1,058
Disposals & - (17) = (17)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ AFEHTE B E - (76) (771) (847)
At 31 December 2004, net of R-ZEZPFE
accumulated depreciation +=—A=+—8"
KR 2BINE - 445 1,776 2,221
At 31 December 2004 and R-ZEZENFEF+—_A=+—H
at 1 January 2005 ER—ZEThF—H—H
Cost B 7R - 623 4,225 4,848
Accumulated depreciation 2REME = (178) (2,449) (2,627)
Net carrying amount BREFE = 445 1,776 2,221
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31 December 2005

B RS ER R

15.Intangible Assets 15. 8 &E
HK$'000

Group REE FAETT
Vehicle licences YRR IR
31 December 2005 —EERF+=ZHA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2005, net of RZETZRF—-—H—HZ

accumulated amortisation B S B 22 8 1 6 28,679
Additions NE 10,617
Amortisation provided during the year — ZN4F 2 8 65 B 5 (2,347)
Exchange realignment ME H 38 & 634
At 31 December 2005, net of R-EFERF+=-—A=+—8"

accumulated amortisation BNBREESH 37,583
At 31 December 2005: R-EZEFEF+-A=+—A8:

Cost BX 7R 56,776

Accumulated amortisation ZEEEE (19,193)

Net carrying amount BREF(E 37,583
31 December 2004 —EENF+A=1+—H
At 1 January 2004: R-ZEZNFE—H—H:

Cost B AR 42,771

Accumulated amortisation ZEIEHEE (14,352)

Net carrying amount AREHE 28,419
Cost at 1 January 2004, net of R-ZZEZEWNE—HA—H 2

accumulated amortisation LA 25 5N 28,419
Additions NE 2,321
Amortisation provided during the year — NG E# 5B E (2,107)
Exchange realignment bE 5, 75 & 46
At 31 December 2004, net of R-ZEZENF+—_/F=+—H"

accumulated amortisation LA 25 5N 28,679
At 31 December 2004 and RZZEZENF+-_A=+—HK

at 1 January 2005: R-ZZETRF—H—H:

Cost BX 7R 45,160

Accumulated amortisation ZEEEE (16,481)

Net carrying amount BREF(E 28,679

121

2005 4F 4

RIERERDE



B RS ER R

> Notes to Financial Statements
31 December 2005 —FThE+-A=+—H

&  16.Prepaid Land Lease Payment 16. BT L b H S FKIE
E Group
g AEM

2005 2004
Z HK$'000 HK$"000
2 T T
g
i Addition during the year and carrying REERER
§ amount at 31 December R+ A=+—RBZKHEE 3,747 —

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is HE AP EAE LS AR P B KRE-

situated in Mainland China.

17.Negative Goodwill 17.88 %
HK$'000
Group rEE FET
31 December 2005 —EERFE+=-A=+—H
At 1 January 2005: R-_ZEZRF—-—H—H:
Cost as previously reported AN iR T 2 (150,439)
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 (note 2.4(a)) M EBMEIREERNE IR 222 (M5E2.4()) 150,439
Cost as restated AN 8 E 5 -
Accumulated amortisation as
previously reported ZEHH WRATEER 37,438
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 (note 2.4(a)) ER#AEFEMBIHELRNEIR 2 E (H17£2.4()) (37,438)

Accumulated amortisation as restated

2R KES

Net carrying amount

FRmEFE
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31 December 2005 —EERF+=-_A=+—H

17.Negative Goodwill (continued) 17.888 @
HK$'000
Group rEH T
31 December 2004 —EENF+_-_A=1+—H
At 1 January 2004: R_ZEZTNFE—-—HA—A:
Cost B AR (150,393)
Accumulated amortisation 2 FE 5 24,024
Net carrying amount FREFE (126,369)
Cost at 1 January 2004, net of RZEENF—A—HB2ZKA:
accumulated amortisation bR R A5 5N (126,369)
Amortisation provided during the year 7<% & 4 §5 B % 13,409
Exchange realignment ME H, (41)
At 31 December 2004 R-_ZEZENFE+—_HF=+—H (113,001)
At 31 December 2004: RZEZNF+_A=+—H:
Cost AR (150,439)
Accumulated amortisation Vs £ 37,438
Net carrying amount BREFE (113,001)
As details in note 2.5 to the financial statements, on the adoption S0 B A SRR KT s 2 5T IR — 2T —F A

of SSAP 30 in 2001, the Group applied the transitional provision
of SSAP 30 that permitted goodwill in respect of acquisitions which
occurred prior to the adoption of SSAP, to remain eliminated

against consolidated retained profits.

At 31 December 2005, the amount of goodwill remaining in
consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, was
HK$45,525,000 (2004: HK$45,525,000).

TEFEBEAE 305)%{5%'2&&@%%@7%5 i
AERIZE305R & 2 BB RS BRFRERMZE
HEBEAR RSP EE CEHE BER
fRERE A P H0BR -

RZZTRAF+A=1+—HB KERBEFZ
BR_ZTT—FRMNETEBHERIFE 305 AT
FEMIB A RIEE A 2 58 /45,525,000 7 (ZF
T PY 4 145,525,000/ 7C) ©
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31 December 2005 —FThE+-A=+—H

& 18.Properties under Development 18. R Y=
E Group
* %W
2005 2004
Z HK$'000 HK$"000
- FER FETT
§  LondinMainland China held under ~ bAeh BBAR 495 eh B A B 2 -3
§ medium term leases, at cost: BAA
E At beginning of year F1) 648,689 1,005,343
@ Additions RE 418,414 125,840
Transfer from property, plant and HEHEBE KE
equipment (note 14) =i (fitzE14) - 18,906
Transfer to properties under ERTERPEHEDE
development for sales (129,276) (194,065)
Disposals & (26,356) (29,079)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HE M E A A (MsE36) - (279,863)
Exchange realignment ME W A 14,335 1,607
At 31 December Rt+t=—A=+—H 925,806 648,689
Development expenditure, at cost: FE S AR
At beginning of year F1 256,020 206,042
Additions NE 398,554 606,777
Transfer from property, plant and EE B HE
equipment (note 14) & (MEE14) - 23,598
Transfer to properties under
development for sales EER S ERPGFHDE (516,489) (561,171)
Disposals k= - (6,873)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEN B AR (FizE36) - (12,682)
Exchange realignment BEE 54, 58 B8 5,657 329
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 143,742 256,020
1,069,548 904,709

At 31 December 2005, the Group’s properties under development
with a net book value of approximately HK$68,310,000 (2004:
HK$51,397,000) were pledged to bank loans (note 30).

WoFERF+=A=1—

B AKBERERE

%) 468,310,000/ 7t (Z ==Y+ :51,397,000
BIL) ZCERPYMEE BERITER 2K

(Fft=£30) o
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31 December 2005 —ZEZHF+-_A=+—H
19.Investment Properties 19. &Y=
Group
AEM
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAEE 2,357,094 2,148,975
Transfer from property, plant and HEAME -HE
equipment (note 14) st (MEE14) 40,079 22,161
Additions NE 68,029 20,324
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEHE AR (M5E36) - (75,372)
Net profit from a fair value adjustment XA EFE Z 4L F 128,111 155,844
Reclassified from completed properties EFDEEEEKZ
for sales (note 25) friEmE (M5E25) 45,005 87,850
Disposals HE (36,698) (6,129)
Exchange realignment ME H, 58 & 52,181 3,441
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—RZKHEE 2,653,801 2,357,094

The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China

and are held under the following lease terms:

AEBZREWMEM NP BIAEE SIATHIFEL
RA:

HK$'000
TET

Medium term leases FhHARE 4

2,653,801

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2005 by RHL Appraisal Ltd., an independent firm of professionally
qualified property valuers, at approximately HK$2,653,801,000
on an open market, existing use basis. The investment properties
are leased to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in note 37(i) to the financial
statements. The net surplus arising on revaluation was credited to

the consolidated income statement.

At 31 December 2005, the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate value of approximately HK$33,628,000 (2004:
HK$14,070,000) were pledged to bank loans (note 30).

AEBREPEER -_STRF+ A=+
—BHB L EEYEHEMKFTTERRE
RARIKEARMSEAIRAZEEEH ALY
2,653,801,000 7T - I E W) AL LA
TE=F BERABMESNVEHRERMEI70) - &
HBBRFEETAGAERERF -

R-BEERFE+-_A=+—0 AEFBEEYD
33,628,000/ 7T (ZZZ U4 114,070,000/ 7T)
2 EBYEE BERTER ZEMT (F5E30) °
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31 December 2005 —EERF+=-_A=+—H

20.Interests in Subsidiaries

20. [t B A Bl fE =

Company
KA T

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTBT T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR IR AR AS 1,746,719 1,746,719
Due from subsidiaries * JFE U B B8 2 B FRIE * 1,039,960 1,046,397
2,786,679 2,793,116

* The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed repayment
date. Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$774,064,604 (2004:
HK$870,402,477) which are interest-free, the remaining balance of
HK$265,894,981 (2004: HK$175,994,538) bears interest at rates ranging from
3% to 7.75% (2004: 3% to 6%) per annum.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries classified under current
assets/liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms

of repayment.

The carrying amounts of these amounts due from subsidiaries

approximate to their fair values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

JE LB BB 2 B 2 FRIE R R AR - AR B E B A E e
KR E U PH B A 7] 2 774,064,604 0 (Z 2T 4
870,402,47747T) % S FRIELASN - $458265,894,9817%8
L (ZZZTWF: 175,994,538%8 L) HEBF3%E
7.75% (ZZZNF 3% 26%) st HEF L

Y ENKBARRBESERARBDEE 8
& REER 28 MEREEERY-

&

%

>

T 48

SRWH B AR 2 A BREERE QAR E
H o

TEMBRBFBENT:

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and fully Percentage of equity
registration paid-up capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries and operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ BRARMRE NG 3
WEAR AR RIREERH B/ EMEREE ZLREBEADL TEEH
2005 2004
% %
Shum Yip Holdings (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$430,320,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (Note 3)
AZEE (R BRAR (HE3) hE AR 430,320,000 NELR
Shum Yip Centre Development Mainland China HK$40,000,000 100 100 Property development
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (Notes 1 & 4)
RETOER () BRAR (M 15R4) ERE 40,000,000/ NELR
Shenzhen Shenkong Industrial (Group) Mainland China RMB95,500,000 80 80 Provision of transportation services
Co., Ltd. (Note 5)
AIRBES (KB) FRAA (M5) B A RE AR 95,500,0007C REEBRE
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20.Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

—EFRF+-A=+-H

B RS ER R

20./fi BN RIER )

TEMBARFBWT: (&)

Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued and fully Percentage of equity
registration paid-up capital/ interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries and operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
R/ BRORER KRR LS
MEARERE RIS RE/EAMEFEE ZREEEADL TEXH
2005 2004
% %

Shenzhen Shenkong Taxi Co., Ltd. Mainland China RMB 13,780,000 80 80 Vehicle rentals

(Notes 1 &4)
AmRE B BERAR (Frif1Rk4) KR AR 13,780,007 REHE
Shenzhen Ganglong Transportation Mainland China RMB10,000,000 80 80 Provision of transportation services

Industrial Co., Ltd. (Notes 1 & 4)
AImEEERERARLA (i 1Rk4) PN AK10,000,0007C REERRY
Shenzhen Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (Note 5) Mainland China RMB200,000,000 51 51 Property development
AR (RB) RHERAA (H5) TN AK#200,000,0007 NEERE
Shenzhen Terra Aluminum Alloy Works Mainland China RMB10,000,000 49 49 Aluminum engineering

Co., Ltd. (Notes 1 & 4)
MTRAEEEIRERAR (Ma1Rk4) GIEIPN G AK%10,000,0007 BT
Shenzhen Terra Property Management Mainland China RMB5,060,000 51 51 Property management

Service Co., Ltd. (Notes 1 & 4)
RTEANEERRB AR A (F3t1R4) Rk AR 5,060,000 NEER
Shenzhen Shenkong Winglee Cross Mainland China RMB20,000,000 40 40 Provision of cross-border

Border Bus Co., Ltd. (Notes 1,2 &5) bus services and vehicle repairs
AIRERNEREARAR (W1 215) PEAE AR #20,000,0007C EREIRBERERE
Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group Mainland China RMB160, 764,662 51 51 Operation of warehouses and

Holdings Co., Ltd. (Note 5) property development
RNFREDREERNERAR (HE5) EARE AR 160,764,6627C BEERRNZER
Shenzhen Pengji (Holdings) Company Mainland China RMB231,911,337 100 100 Property trading investment and

Limited (Note 3) development
AR (£8) BRAR (3E3) EIRE ARE231,911,337 DEEE RERRR
Shenzhen PILD Securities Products Mainland China RMB75,000,000 63.46 63.46 Manufacturing of security products

Co., Ltd. (Notes 1 & 4)
AIEEZHRHERAF (M1 R4) PN AR H75,000,0007C REZHER
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s Notes to Financial Statements  Bf#R&MicE

31 December 2005 —ZEZHF+-_A=+—H
§  20.Interests in Subsidiaries (continued) 20.f B~ B (&)
% Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) FTENBARFBOT: (&)
- Place of Nominal value of
£ incorporation/ issued and fully Percentage of equity
% registration paid-up capital/ interest attributable
% Name of subsidiaries and operations registered capital to the Company Principal activities
5 R/ ERIRAR LN 3
H WEAALE RIREERY  BE/ARESEE ZRFEHEA FBEH
3 2005 2004
% %
Shenzhen Pengji Property Management Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property management
Services Limited (Notes 1 & 4)
ATRENEERRB AR A (Fat1R4) Rk AR 20,000,007 NEER
Huizhou Dayawan Shenkong Sanwei Mainland China RMB10,000,000 64 64 Provision of transportation services
Transportation Industrial Limited
(Notes 1 & 4)
BHATRRE=SAAEXERAA (M 1R4) EARE AR 810,000,007 R EBRT
Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. Mainland China RMB19,920,000 100 100 Manufacturing of steel products
(Notes 1 &5)
AREREBRAR (H1R5) KK AR %19,920,0007 HETREm
Shenzhen Pengsheng Property Industrial Mainland China RMB45,000,000 50 50 Property trading investment
Company Limited (Notes 1, 2 & 5) and development
AIEEEEZERAR (a1 2R5) PN AR 45,000,0007C NEEE RERER
Shenzhen Wondershine Residence Mainland China RMB7,114,288 100 100 Property management
Company Limited (Notes 1 & 4)
AYBEEFERAA (HE1R4) EARE ARET,114,288T nEER
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) Co., Mainland China RMB41,393,574 100 100 Investment holding
Ltd. (Note 3)
REAR ORI BRAR (FaE3) Rk ARE41,393,5741C RERR
Newton Industrial Limited BVI US$34 55.88 55.88 Investment holding
EERAES 3UET RERR
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding as at 31 RZZBZRGE+TA=1T—RH SHBA=HE
December 2005. ERIREEREEER.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in NEREERREAFEREEREETES
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the HARAEEEEFEZEEZR D 2AREIME
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. RNElZB -EZRE JIEHEMMMEB A RFFIEH
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the BRERBN TR

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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20.Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Notes:

1. Indirectly held by the Company.

2. The Company has control of the board of directors of this entity and therefore this

entity is regarded as a subsidiary of the Company.

3. Established in the Mainland China as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
4. Established in the Mainland China as a domestic enterprise with limited liability.
5. Established in the Mainland China as a co-operative joint venture enterprise.

21.Interests in Associates

B RS ER R

20.ffiB A B R (&)
TEWBATNBEOT: (&)

M e
1. HARRFAEERA-

2.  ARF ”TE%% %Z%%‘QE\P%‘H& HAEBRRAR
Az

3. RPBERERIRIIEBEERCE-
4. RPEBRAERZABENBREELE-

5. RHBEAKEXRIASIERLEDRE-

21. & N TR

Group Company
rEH AT
2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET TET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETRR D - RAKAS - = 88,053 90,053
Share of net assets JEREEFE 3,027,489 3,125,859 - =
Negative goodwill on acquisition WENELEZBHE - (436,094) - -
Loans from associates ﬁﬁ%@\ RGBT ZER (7,999) (53,200) - =
Loans to associates HBTHERNRZ2ERK 27,130 32,028 - =

3,046,620 2,668,593 88,053 90,053

Market value of listed shares

EmBpTE

1,431,478 788,773 - =

The loans from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment date. The carrying amounts of these loans

approximate to their fair values.

The amounts due to associates classified under the Company’s

current liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and fully repaid during

the year.

BERBMGET B THERRZERRER
R BEEEEEAH-ZEFERZREE

STARRRIRBIBEZEAHE QAR RIBLE
EH %E’&EAzliirW%%ZE*
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21.Interests in Associates (continued)

A reconciliation of the above amounts of negative goodwill arising

on the acquisition of associates is as follows:

21.

BENTIER ®)

WHEE S ARIFMEA BBz Ll e EAEN
T

Group
AKEE
HK$'000
THTT
31 December 2005 —EERF+=-A=+-—H
At 1 January 2005: R-ZZETRF—H—H:
Cost as previously reported AR B 23R (459,720)
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 (note 2.4(a)) RMNB BB MELERNEIR 2 FLE (H15E£2.4)) 459,720
Cost as restated A 48 E 5 =
Accumulated amortisation as RE#E BT ER
previously reported 23,626
Effect of adopting HKFRS 3 (note 2.4(a)) RMAB BB WS LERIZFE 39 (HI5E2.4(a)) (23,626)
Accumulated amortisation as restated RIE#HE KE7 =
Net carrying amount AREHE =
31 December 2004 —EENF+_A=1+—H
At 1 January 2004: RZZEZENFE—H—H:
Cost BX 7R (6,397)
Accumulated amortisation BVt §i 533
Net carrying amount FREFE (5,864)
Cost at 1 January 2004, net of RZEENF—A—HB2ZKA:
accumulated amortisation R R A5 5N (5,864)
Arising from acquisition of an associate ~ FEUR BB & N GIFTE L (453,323)
Amortisation provided during the year — ZN4F & # 4 8 #45 23,093
At 31 December 2004 RZZEZNF+—_A=+—H (436,094)
At 31 December 2004: RZZEZNF+—_A=+—H:
Cost B 7R (459,720)
Accumulated amortisation Vs & 23,626
Net carrying amount ERMEFE (436,094)

As details in note 2.5 to the financial statements, on the adoption

of SSAP 30 in 2001, the Group applied the transitional provision

of SSAP 30 that permitted goodwill in respect of acquisitions which

occurred prior to the adoption of SSAP, to remain eliminated

against consolidated retained profits.

M B RKMI 2.5 X — T —FRA
ST EBEEIRE NEERAELBRIEGR
X BRI RAZ G T BB ERI A 2 WEE B+
EEZHE BENFEAREEN TG
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21.Interests in Associates (continued)

B RS ER R

1. BE N R (8

At 31 December 2005, the amount of goodwill remaining in
consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of
associates, was HK$61,259,000 (2004: HK$61,259,000).

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

RZZEZRF+_A=+—H REERE T
FRAD 8% A U B “A"TﬁﬁFEZFﬁ@E
61,259,000/8 70 (ZZFZE M4 :61,259,000/%5
JC) °

TEBEQRFBOT:

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
establishment/  of issued and fully ownership
Business incorporation paid-up capital/ interest attributable
Name of associates structure and operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
RY/if  ERORERRE TEBER
LTS £33 RIREE Y /EMEAEE CBRARBEAL  FEER
2005 2004
% %

Road King Infrastructure Ltd. ("Road King") * Corporate Bermuda HK$58,414,000 24.72 2492 Provision of investment
and management of
toll roads

BROERERAR ([RH)])* R BRE 58,414,000 1T REWBELRRERER

Shenzhen Tianan Industrial Development Corporate Mainland China US$18,000,000 25,5 255 Property trading, investment

Co., Ltd. and development
RIRZIEREFRAR A PEARE 18,000,000 7 WEEE RERER
Shenzhen Mawan Power Co., Ltd. Corporate Mainland China RMB560,000,000 19 19 Power generation

("Mawan")

ANERENERLA ([5E]) NG REIREE  ARES560,000,0007 %8

Shenzhen Topway Video Communication Corporate Mainland China RMB200,000,000 311 31.1 Provision of cable TV and

Co., Ltd. other communication

network technology services

AHRARAERAT NG EIAEE  ARE200,000,0007 ARERRERAMER
M B R

Shenzhen SEG-CNEDC Color Display Corporate Mainland China RMB300,000,000 26.76 26.76  Investment holding

Device Corp.

ATERTEY CRTEARAH NG EIREE  ARE300,000,0007 RERR

Shenzhen Gaofa Investment Holding Ltd. (“Gaofa") Corporate Mainland China RMB309,200,000 29 29  Property development

ARRREARRLE ([RE

1 R

Zl]

mEAE AKE309,200,0007T

None of above associates are audited by Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants, Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young

International member firms.

* Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and the ordinary shares *

of nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited. The principal place of Road King’s business is in Mainland China.

and investment

NEERREE

LB A RSO E AR LR AR
MEBFRLA RN DEFFARYALDE
%o

BTN BREEMKZZ ARAT EEARRD A SK
EECIGETERBHARZMARAT TR LM B2 =
REFME AP EIALE.
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21.Interests in Associates (continued)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the

year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

B RS ER R

21.

BENTIER ®)

NEREER/YAFEREBKEZTEX
HRAREEEFEZEABO 2 ARBEE
BMENRRE-EFTRR JIHEMBEAFH

To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the EEEHER RN UKo
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
The following is a summarised financial information of all FIEMERalzMBERBMENT
associates:
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Assets BE 15,373,423 15,242,599
Liabilities BE 5,185,136 4,764,455
Revenue WA 5,035,696 5,270,974
Profit el 553,612 1,032,843

22. Amounts due from Minority Shareholders

The amounts due from minority shareholders as at 31 December

2005 are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year.

The amount due from a minority shareholder of approximately
HK$110,047,000 at 31 December 2004, which bore interest at a

rate of 9% per annum, was repaid in 2005.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from minority shareholders

approximate to their fair values.

22,

FE WL D 81 3R BR K

R-ZEZTAF T -_A=1t—HZRELHEBRE
ERAEER 2R —FREE-

R-ZZEF+—A=+—8 ERIHRE
A #9110,047,000/8 T A% F B R 8 BN
—ZETRFEER
JEU L H G R RE

A REEEE QA LERSC
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31 December 2005 —ZEZHF+-_A=+—H
23.Long Term Receivables 23. R AW RKIA o
Hﬂ_
Group Company N
AEHE Vi NN "
2005 2004 2005 2004 o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 g
FER FAT FER FAT &
Long term receivables = B pE IR - 10,340 - =
As at 31 December 2005, the Group had no outstanding long RZZZRETZA=1T—8H ~EEHMEHR
term receivable from independent third party. The amounts of W [B1 2z J& 57 86 = 75 &= AR FE M IR - = HAFE WK IR
long term receivables are unsecured and interest-free. ZeREREEARES-
24. Available-for-sale Equity Investments/ 24 A HEEEMRE RAKRE
Long Term Investments
Group Company
AER P NN
2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TR FET THT

At fair value: BARAE:
Listed equity investments in FEREREZ
Mainland China FhERMRE 23,072 19,622 - -
Unlisted equity investments in R AR
Mainland China JELMERUKRE 18,178 11,569 1,720 1,720
41,250 31,191 1,720 1,720
During the year, the gross gain of the Group’s available-for-sale FA BERERPRIAZAEEAHELE
equity investments recognised directly in equity amounted to TR E 2B m S FEE2,280,0004 7T
HK$2,280,000 (2004: HK$238,000). — 2T [PY4F :238,000%57T) °
The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted FRRUERECAREATEAELE I LT
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments have R REZ AR BERBAEEFERAS
been estimated using a valuation technique based on assumptions EMERER ZRK FKAMERITETIE.

that are supported by net asset value and observable market prices.
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25.Inventories 25. 78
Group Company
rEE ¥ N
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT FET FAT
Raw materials R %} 33,486 30,933 - =
Work in progress 8 12,644 9,975 - =
Finished goods E K 38,744 48,273 - -
Completed properties for sales ESER 2 R 280,544 358,503 - -
365,418 447,684 - -
At 31 December 2005, the Group'’s inventories with a net book R_ZEZERF+_A=+—H EEFELE

value of approximately HK$5,986,000 (2004: nil) were pledged

as security for the Group’s bank loans (note 30).

During the year, completed properties for sales that amounted to
approximately HK$45,005,000 (2004: HK$87,850,000) and nil
(2004: HK$21,970,000) was transferred to investment properties
and property, plant and equipment for the purposes of investment
properties and office premises of the Group, respectively (notes
19 & 14, respectively).

5,986,00075 It (_fiﬁmﬁ ) 2 AEEFE
BEAARSEBFETER 2K (H:E30) °

FABIRKZFFIHY R 445,005,000 7T (=

P04 :87,850,000/87T) RE (ZZZ Y4
21,970,000 ) B EBREREMERYE B
ERFEE DRRERKRE 2 REMERRAE
(DRI BHIFEI9K%14) °

26.Properties under Development for Sales 26. ERPFHY =

Group

EH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Costs incurred EERA 153,460 404,699

Add: Attributable profits on n:REKIEE 2

incomplete projects JE (55 - 14,993
153,460 419,692
Less: Sale deposits/instalments received  Jgi: EWSEERT &2 EIFUA - (44,211)
153,460 375,481

The properties under development for sale are located in Mainland
China and are held under medium term leases. Upon the adoption
of HK-Int 3, properties under development for sales are stated at

cost less impairment losses for the year ended 31 December 2005.

AR B A BE SR A 15 Y T AR AR -
RMWEEREEIRK BE_TTRF T4
=+ HIEFE BRPEFEYERRABRE
B8 AR



Notes to Financial Statements
31 December 2005

—EFRF+-A=+-H

27.Trade Receivables

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant credit terms
to its customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are regularly reviewed by management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-

interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at balance sheet date

B RS ER R

27. EWBR X

ELEEBRAT AEETERETPEALEER
HY o NSRBI ROR B EL R IR E) 2 FRMGRR IR AR+ B AR
2| KORE S E R - AR IR AR B TR B 1F
E Mt o Bl R A e AN R B 2 R UK AR RS
REFTRZBEZER BAKELEBE RS
ZIEE R - AR R B IERT B FIR-

REE R 2 BRURRRZREE DTN T :

is as follows:
Group
AEH
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FE T
Within 1 year —FR 290,699 150,141
1 to 2 years —FEMFNR 18,932 26,629
2 to 3 years MEE=FR 12,355 3,987
Over 3 years =FLAE 379 3,528
322,365 184,285
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts & - 532 BR & (18,704) (20,954)
303,661 163,331

28.Equity Investments at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss/Short Term Investments

HK$'000
FERT THETT FER THET

28. EBEBBAABETNE 2 EHEM

RE EHRE

Group Company
REE AN
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

At market value: HhiE:
EREzZE™M

ERtRE

Listed equity investments in
Hong Kong

560 2,900 560 2,900

The above equity investments at 31 December 2005 were classified

as held for trading.

NER-—_ZEZERF+_A=+—HZ#RIER
BNBARRIEFEERGE.
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31 December 2005 —ZEZHF+-_A=+—H
§  29.Cash and Cash Equivalents 29. BERREEE
£ Group Company
g REE A
2005 2004 2005 2004
Z HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS$'000
z FER FAT FER FAT
£
i Cash and bank balances Re MIBTET 2,213,165 882,594 78,541 104,323
é Time deposits EHFR 1,295,365 2,501,966 1,052,339 1,207,672
E Cash and cash equivalents RekBaeFE 3,508,530 3,384,560 1,130,880 1,311,995
At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the REER AEENUARKFTECR e RR
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to 1T#51F3£2,306,938,000/6 0 (ZET P4 -
HK$2,306,938,000 (2004: HK$2,008,429,000). The RMB is not 2,008,429,00077T) - AR AT B B H A
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland HAanE ¥ AT ARIR I@l\/EE%MﬂﬁU&%/E
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration BERMEERBATE AREREFRERE
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, INEEB 2 RITEARELRAEME -

the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for the other currencies

through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank FEHRIRT 2R SBRIER BRI FERE RIRE
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods B FI R BRELA S B E BT R 2 F i A —H
of between one day and three months depending on the ZE=AATE RIXEEZAKREFEM
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at E - WIRAEER R E T REERRNF S -He
the respective short term time deposit rates. The carrying amounts RBeEEY RABEEAARERSE

of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.
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31 December 2005 Z=—ZEZTRF+=-A=+—H
30.Interest-bearing Bank Loans 30. FERITER o
Hﬁ_
Group Company ]
Effective AEE AT -
interest 2005 2004 2005 2004 E
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 T
BRI E (%) 258 FER FHET FER FET b
Current &b P
Secured A 6.70 - 6.75 2006 50,922 63,360 - -
Unsecured AR IR 4.52 - 6.90, 2006 1,998,582 1,994,873 736,735 388,630
LIBOR+0.55
—LIBOR+1.5,
SIBOR+0.75
2,049,504 2,058,233 736,735 388,630
Non-current B
Unsecured IR LIBOR+0.63 — 2007-2009 2,132,653 2,813,795 2,132,653 2,759,273
LIBOR+0.85

4,182,157 4,872,028 2,869,388 3,147,903

Group Company
rEH RAT]
2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THETT FERT THET

Analysed into: D :
Bank loans repayable: RERZRITER:
Within one year —FR 2,049,504 2,058,233 736,735 388,630
In the second year N A 542,857 676,330 542,857 621,808
=FERFR
In the third to fifth years, inclusive (BIEEEME) 1,589,796 2,137,465 1,589,796 2,137,465
4,182,157 4,872,028 2,869,388 3,147,903
(@) Bank loans amounting to HK$50,922,000 (2004: (a) SRITEREEE/A50,922,000/ 7T (Z T
HK$63,360,000) were secured by: F:63,360,000/57C)  FHA N EEEHE T
(i) certain of the Group’s land and buildings which have an () AEEETLREF (HAKRESF
aggregate net book value of approximately H492,432,0008 T (ZEZ M4 :
HK$2,432,000 (2004: HK$28,000,000), and investment 28,000,000/ 7C) ) R AEB R E W
properties of the Group with an aggregate value of (E48184933,628,000/8 T (=T =Y
approximately HK$33,628,000 (2004: HK$14,070,000) %:14,070,000% 7)) (MsE14%
(notes 14 & 19 respectively); and 19) : &
(i) certain of the Group’s properties under development with (i) BRMF(EA968,310,0008 L (=ZEZ
a net book value of approximately HK$68,310,000 VU4 :51,397,000/870) (BHEE18) 2 &

(2004: HK$51,397,000) (note 18). TAREEERT 2 W%
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31 December 2005 —ZEZHF+-_A=+—H
§  30.Interest-bearing Bank Loans (continued) 30, FERITER @)
§ (iii) certain of the Group’s completed properties for sales with (i) BRMF{E495,986,000/8 7T (= Z Y
g a net book value of approximately HK$5,986,000 (2004: F4E) (KisE25) 2 B TAEREK 2
w HK$ Nil) (note 25). (Sxi-EE X
E
E (b) Except for the bank loan equivalent to approximately (b) Bk T HEER4I2,885,296,000/8 T2 SRITE
HK$2,885,296,000, which is denominated in United States MAERTTRHESN EBEFGUARE
g dollars, all borrowings are in RMB. Eo
Other interest rate information: HihBERAMERER:
Group
AEH
2005 2004
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
rate rate rate rate
BEERE FBHR=E Eiljak | P FEAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FAET FAET
Bank loans—secured IRITE X — B 50,922 - 63,360 =
Bank loans—unsecured RITE K — A 1,245,939 2,885,296 1,660,765 3,147,903
Company
AATR
2005 2004
Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
rate rate rate rate
BEERE FBHR=E Eiljak | P FEAE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER FAT FAT
Bank loans—unsecured IRITE K — EAK A - 2,869,388 — 3,147,903
The carrying amounts of bank loans approximate to their fair RITERCEEEREAAERESE-

values.



Notes to Financial Statements
31 December 2005 —EERF+_-_A=+—H

31. Trade and Notes Payables

An aged analysis of the trade and notes payables as at the balance

sheet date, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

B RS ER R

3. ENRRRENRE

REE RIZNREH B B 2 RNRRF B
BRI

Group

AEE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Within 1 year —F N 135,606 140,317
1 to 2 years —FERER 12,501 24,394
2 to 3 years WMEE=FR 5,448 18,272
Over 3 years =FLAE 41,904 26,513
195,459 209,496

32. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

32. IR EBLIH

AERRERBREBEREEZEHNT:

Fair value  Accelerated
adjustment tax
Timing  Revaluation arising from  depreciation
differences on of investment  Revaluation acquisition of on investment
Group sales recognition properties of assets  a subsidiary properties Total
Deferred tax liabilities: HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRE-X
r5E HE RE& WEAREE REM*
BREHERE: BRAZERE NEER EEEft ZARERE  MBHERE at
THL THT AL THT THT THT
At 1 January 2005 R-EZnE-A-H 778 39,386 7,707 11,717 32,164 91,752
Deferred tax charged to the  NEERKERF
income statements during Mk ZIEE
the year (note 10) #3a (Fr3E10) 11,811 18,155 - - 8,399 38,365
At 31 December 2005 RZZERF+_A=1-H 12,589 57,541 7,707 1,717 40,563 130,117
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31 December 2005

32. Deferred Tax (continued)

B RS ER R

32. EFERIE (&)

Revaluation of

Deferred tax assets: investments Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETIE & EE REE Hit &5t
T FHT T
At 1 January 2005 R_EERAF—H—H 1,145 326 1,471
Deferred tax charged to equity REERERF R
during the year IR IE TR IE (422) = (422)
At 31 December 2005 R-ZBZERF+=-A=+—H 723 326 1,049
Fairvalue  Accelerated
adjustment tax
Timing  Revaluation arising from  depreciation
differences on of investment  Revaluation acquisition of on investment
Group sales recognition properties of assets  a subsidiary properties Total
Deferred tax liabilities: HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HWE - X
by 3] HE k& WEAREE RENE
BEEREER: BRZEE NESMR BEEft 2OANERE  MABERE Rt
THL THL FHL THL THL THL
At 1 January 2004 RZZEME—A—H 28,657 30,575 7,707 11,717 24,764 103,420
Deferred tax charged to the  AFERMEEF
income statements during 0Bk ZEILRIA
the year (note 10) (PzE10) (27,879) 8,811 - - 7,400 (11,668)
At 31 December 2004 R-ZEME+-A=1—H 778 39,386 1,107 11,717 32,164 91,752
Revaluation of
Deferred tax assets: investments Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFIE B EE RESMH HAth &5t
FHETT FHETT FET
At 1 January 2004 R-_EZWMF—HA—H 1,179 326 1,505
Deferred tax charged to equity RNEERERF R
during the year JRAEFR IR (34) - (34)
At 31 December 2004 RZEZEMF+=_A=+—8H 1,145 326 1,471
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32. Deferred Tax (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$405,838,000
(2004: HK$216,591,000) and in Mainland China of
HK$160,245,000 (2004: HK$120,861,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have

been loss-making for years.

At 31 December 2005, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2004: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

32. IEEERIE ()

REBNEH 2 17 E 8 /R405,838,000% 7T
(ZZZ P4 :216,591,0007T) » 7 A BRI K fe
2 RIS E18 £160,245,000/8 7T (Z T T PO
120,861,000/ 7T) A] A{EHR SHE £ E1E 2 A A
ZARRERB & - R ZEERIREERS
FZWBAR B B2 S EERERELERE
BE-

33.Share Capital 33. RA&
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Authorised: VAR
3,000,000,000 (2004:3,000,000,000) SIREEC.05B T (Z TP F
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 0.05/ 7T) 2 & iff%3,000,000,0004%
(2004: HK$0.05) each —ZZ P94 :3,000,000,0000% ) 150,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BRI
2,482,413,966 (2004:2,482,413,966) BRHEE0.058 L (Z T 4F
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 0.05%7T) 2 EiMAk2,482,413,9660%
(2004: HK$0.05) each —Z P4 :2,482,413,9660%) 124,121 124,121

There was no change in the authorised and issued capital of the

Company during the year.

FARRAOEERBETEAL EEME-
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34.Share Option Scheme 34. B R AESTE
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Shenzhen Investment Limited

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employee or director (including executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group,
or any employee, partner or director of any business consultant,
joint venture partner, financial adviser and legal adviser of and to
any member of the Group, as absolutely determined by the board
of directors. The Scheme became effective on 5 June 2002 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years from that date, after which period no
further options will be issued but in all other respects the provisions
of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect. The remaining
life of the Scheme as at 31 December, 2005 was six and a half

years.

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as
at the date of approval of the Scheme unless the Company obtains
a fresh approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted for
the purpose of calculating such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the
above, the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 30 percent of the shares in issue from
time to time. As at the date of this report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Scheme was 215,760,000
shares (including options for 203,400,000 shares that have been
granted but not yet lapsed or exercised) which represented 8.69%
of the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December 2005.

ARARE —REBER S ([%HE)) - mE
AEBEBIEHERMZ A ER2EE RN
KR ZAt B2 R ERS EEBEAKEEM
KEZREXRESE (BREAT FRITRIBIIFE
WITES) - HAKEEM KB 2 T X R
BERH MR ERBERCES BH X
B 2 AEFERTE XN _FT_F
NAT B R IR RIERT a8l A
RE BB T FRERSER ZHRBE KA
SE—FIERHOBRE BEMAEMTE &
SMBEDHEFRER- R_FTRF T+ A
=t+—B &K TNERRNFEF-

BRIEAR D RIEERR SIMEE - T AIEBEITE
RIRZET 8 RAEME M AR R 2 BRI
o BB T Al B T A BT 2 H il AR AR B LR
TMEHBBRIEZFTEE REBITRNEHR
10% ° RIRZAT EIGTRK R 2 BBRIERS T E ARG
HiZ10%RRE 2 B K b EXFTRTE N BE
HATERIBZ T 8 RAEME A AR A 7 2 AR
STEIR MM T 768 2 R 176 BB ARAE 1 AT 8¢
FTABITZROEE ERTEBBTREET
R 4222 30% o PAZANHRE B B - iRIBZ AT &IA]
FE1T 2 BRD B E0H215,760,0000% (BIEE &
B 8 R R B kAT 2 AT 3R#$203,400,000A% A%
N2 BIRE) HARRR=ZZTRAF+=-A=
T—HEBT’RAR28.69% °
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34.Share Option Scheme (%) 34. BRESTE ) o
M

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme BRBEENZFTER T 2 EE LR BRI i

is that the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon RER 1218 A AR TS 2 8E 2 BRE (21 E
exercise of the options granted to each Participant (including both BT RMARITE 2 AR ME BT RET ﬁ
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall AT 2 IR BECTSHBBE BTRODBE ﬁ

not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue. 1% i

The period under which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the board of directors at their absolute discretion
and notified by the directors to each grantee as being the period
during which an option may be exercised, and shall expire no later
than 10th Anniversary of the date upon which the option is granted
and accepted in accordance with the Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Board and specified in the offer letter at the
time of the offer, there is no minimum period for which an option
must be held before the option can be exercised.

An option is open for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1. The full amount of exercise price for the subscription for

shares has to be paid upon exercise of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of
directors and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer of grant, which must be a business day, (ii) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets
for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of offer of

grant, and (iii) the nominal value of a share in the Company.

BREZATENEHEFSSERAT IHE
SBASARARTERBERE 2 SR SRIEZ
At 8 X B RHE 2 17 HAPR R EL AR iR
WEBETI0BFERER-FRIFESSRENE
ROBRERRE T EHTER SRIETER
PHE AT TR AR B B R K HIR -

BRERRLEE RN T \RARXRE &
MBI RN RIE A VBT - RBR D 2 1T
BR2BERTEBRER -

o

=t

TEENHESSETLRNSEEGRAER
TEEAZEIRUTZESE (IRNEKLEHR
(BWEAREER) ERBBMARIMBERARAE
BRERMAE RO EHE (IRBEEEHER
FISEE XA EETBMARSMERARERAR
EBRAE 2 FHIBRNKTIE: RiiAAF RN Z
mEfEe
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= . = = =
£ 34.Share Option Scheme () 34. B FEEHE ()
o«
=
=} . . . U NP = e
£ The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme EARFEEAN  ZatEE T mARIT 6 2 BB ER
g during the year: e
- Number of share options Price of Company's shares*
2 YA FARRG 2 ER
£ Date of
2 At1 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled At31 grant of Exercise At grant At exercise
g January during during during during December share period of Exercise price of date of date of
2 2005 the year the year the year the year 2005 options  share options share options options options
H K HKS HKS
= RZ221F
% RZSREF 128 RiBRE rEBRE fikBRE RERE RERE
< -A-H RERRE RERTE RERER RERTH =+-8 BA HE &t G fifEz 8
5 AT BT B
Directors
B2
HU Aimin = 6,000,000 = = = 6,000,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 1.080 =
HER 17/5/2010
ZHANG Yijun - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 1.080 -
REH 17/502010
LU Jianhua 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 5/712002 5/7/2002 - 1.265 - -
E == (Note 1) 41112007
(Hr3E1) 4,000,000 = = = 4,000,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 1.080 -
(Note 1) 17/5/2010
(Btsk1)
ZHAO Mingfeng - 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 1.080 =
febil | 17/52010
LIANG Kaiping = 4,000,000 = = = 4,000,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 1.080 =
ZET 17/5/2010
XU Ruxin 2,000,000 = = = 2,000,000 271612002 271612002 - 1.265 = =
Bkl 26/6/2007
3,500,000 - - - 3,500,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 1.080 -
17/5/2010
ZHU Huoyang 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 271612002 271612002 - 1.265 - -
RNE 26/6/2007
3,500,000 = = = 3,500,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 1.080 =
17/5/2010
LIU Zixian (Note 2) 2,400,000 - - (2,400,000) - - 271612002 271612002 - 1.265 = =
B3 (W) 260612007
LEE Yip Wah, Peter 2,000,000 = = = 2,000,000 271612002 271612002 - 1.265 = =
F2E 261612007
- 600,000 - - - 600,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 1.080 -
17/5/2010
WONG Po Yan 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 271612002 27/6/2002 - 1.265 - -
ERM 26/6/2007
600,000 = = = 600,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005- 1.088 1.080 =
17/5/2010
WU Wai Chung, Michael 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000 50112002 5712002 - 1.265 = =
REE 41712007
600,000 = = = 600,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 1.080 =
17/52010
LI Wai Keung - 600,000 - - - 600,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 1.080 =
TR 17/5/2010
13,600,000 32,400,000 = (2,400,000) = 43,600,000
Other employees
AftEE
In aggregate 2,000,000 = = = = 2,000,000 271612002 271612002 - 1.265 = =
&t 26/6/2007
16,400,000 - - - - 16,400,000 30112002 30112002 - 1.265 - -
20712007
20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 50112002 5712002 - 1.265 - -
41712007
1,000,000 = = = = 1,000,000 8/7/2002 8/7/2002 - 1.265 = =
10112007
- 23,600,000 - - - 23,600,000 18/5/2005 18/5/2005 - 1.088 1.080 -
17/5/2010
39,400,000 23,600,000 = = = 63,000,000

53,000,000 56,000,000 o 2,400,000) - 106,600,000
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34.Share Option Scheme (%) 34. BRESTE () ¥

W

* The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the grant of the share S RERER L BHMBRERR ARG ZBERINEES %
options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior to FREREN AT EAZRER L BB — A5 AER

the date of the grant of the options during the year. The price of the Company’s Frz (B - REERR 1T B BAPT IR BB AR R Rl 1D 2 (B iz

shares disclosed as at the date of the exercise of the share options is the weighted & Tk 22 AT T B B % BE 80 B N B AR I AN TR A Eé

average of the Stock Exchange closing prices over all of the exercises of options BTz 2B MEFHE. flud

within the disclosure line during the year. i

=

Notes: 1. Mr. LIU Jianhua resigned as a director of the Company on 23 December,
2005. His share options will lapsed on 23 March, 2006.

2. Mr. LIU Zixian resigned as a director of the Company on 12 November, 2004.
His share options lapsed on 12 February, 2005.

During the period from 1st January, 2006 and up to the date of
this report, (i) the Company has granted options to subscribe for
112,300,000 shares; (i) options to subscribe for 13,500,000 shares
have been exercised; and (iii) options to subscribe for 2,000,000
shares have been lapsed. As at the date of this report, options
carrying rights to subscribe for 203,400,000 shares remain

outstanding and yet to be exercised.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$16,800,000.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year was estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to

the model used for the year ended 31 December 2005:

fisEn. %IJ%§%$F722£$+ )51 Jr EI%’?EZISAT

2. FFEEER _ZTNF+— A+ - AREARRAE
E-B-EBRENR_ZTEAF A+ _BRR

RZZERNF— A —HEARRE T3 H H1EE
()R A BRI AT 5288 112,300,0000% 3% (5 2 &
P& : (ii)P] 3R B8 13,500,000% f% 15 2 B AR e B &
77155 R (iii) AT 5R A% 2,000,0008% A% 15 2 FE AR #E E
ERB-EARARE T B E W EERRE
203,400,000 [ 1 2 i AR #E (5 SATE SN TR 3BT
RITHE

FARTIREBARE 2 A7 E7%16,800,000%8 7T °

FAMREARARS A 2 BREQAE RRE
H HA#zBlack-ScholestE B {5t - & FR Z B FI| BB AR
R 2 AR R G e TR B ZERRBE
EERF+_A=T—HLFEZEE

Dividend yield (%) 4.00 i% BUES (%) 4.00
Expected volatility (%) 39 TEER B) (%) 39
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.20 T [ 2 K 2R (%) 4.20
Expected life of option (year) 5 ﬁﬁﬁ RS S () 5
Exercise price (HK$) 1.088 171E(E (BT) 1.088
Stock price on date of grant (HK$) 1.080 i BHEZ&E (BT) 1.080

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the last year and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,

which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into

the measurement of fair value.

TEHHﬁ%ﬂx%iﬁ%?@?%*i%?ﬁﬁg'ﬂi%ﬁH’E
SROTEEA 2B R - BHRBRKR AR

R ZBRASBERDE R FEIERIE

REERBRERGER-

SFEAAERLET AL BBRER LR
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35.Reserves

(@) Group

—EFRF+-A=+-H

B RS ER R

35. f#fE

(a)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 51 to
52 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates in the PRC has been transferred
to statutory reserve which is restricted as to use.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and associates in prior year, remain eliminated
against consolidated retained profits, as explained in notes
17 and 21 to the financial statements.

EE

H

/!

AEBEARFERBEFEZHBSBER
HE N EHRRFESIAEES2EER
SEHRAZETe

e

REBHING ERRZBRDED RAR A%
B 75 o B2 R ) B Bt 8 B 2 BB A
NEEBEEATHE YREELRE-

AN SRR M 17 R 21 PR B
BYREHNBARRBERRAELEZAE
ZETHE BENRARERN T EH-

(b) Company (b) &ATF]
Share Share
premium option Retained
account reserve profits Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BpEER BRERE R A k]
(i FHT FHT FHET FHT
At 1 January 2004 RZEEMF—-HA—H 1,472,906 - 641,597 2,114,503
Shares issued at premium Zm B EITRMD 22,442 = = 22,442
Net profit for the year AN A | 11 - - 154,316 154,316
Interim 2004 dividend “ZETNFFBHRE 12 = = (49,648) (49,648)
Adjustment to prior year's
final dividend FEERRE 2 AR 12 - - (603) (603)
—ETMEEHIR
Proposed final 2004 dividend REARR B 12 - = (74,472) (74,472)
RZZETF
At 31 December 2004 +=-—A=+—H 1,495,348 = 671,190 2,166,538
Net profit for the year REZ MR 11 - - 147,390 147,390
Interim 2005 dividend “EERFERERE 12 - - (49,648) (49,648)
—TTREEER
Proposed final 2005 dividend REARR B 12 = = (273,066) (273,066)
Equity-settled share option ABRASZ 2
arrangements L - 16,800 - 16,800
R-ZZTHF
At 31 December 2005 +=A=+—H 1,495,348 16,800 495,866 2,008,014
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36.Disposal of Subsidiaries 36. HE M B LA o
Hﬁ_
2005 2004 N
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 Y
B & F#T FHT o
d
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE: ﬁ
Property, plant and equipment e NS E 14 - 29,226
Properties under development BRAPYE 18 - 292,545
Investment properties wEYHE 19 - 75,372
Cash and cash equivalents HeMEEEFE - 10,182
Accounts receivable JrE Uk BR 3k - 1,420
Prepayments and other receivables TR SR IE B B b U R IR - 30,897
Inventories FE - 3,863
Accounts payable JE - R 3K - (6,649)
Accruals and other payables FEET B FA I H fth FE A< 3R - (9,355)
Tax payable e B IR - 3)
Interest-bearing bank loans HEIRITER - (107,163)
Minority interests DH IR R E - (142,566)
177,769
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEN B AR ZEE - (25,212)
- 152,557
Satisfied by: SRNDIE:Y
Cash Re - 66,896
Interests in an associate Bt 2 N Al RS - 85,661
- 152,557

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of REEMBARZE 2 RRESBERNFRE

the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: M

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT
Cash consideration ReRE - 66,896
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERERREGEE - (10,182)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents FLHEMHMEBARZIRE N
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries R & &R A F 58 - 56,714

RBE_ZENF+_A=+—RIFE HE
MEBARCFEHAKREZFE RALRE
EBE BN EBEAZE -

The results of the subsidiaries disposed of in the year ended 31
December 2004 had no significant impact on the Group's

consolidated turnover or profit after tax for that year.
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37.0perating Lease Arrangements 37. REMAOZH

(i) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 19 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to eighteen
years. The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At 31 December 2005, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with

its tenants falling due as follows:

()

ERHEE

REQEMELH AEEHELETREY
% (MBHmRME19) HRZERMFEE
TNEAF - HAOERRIN—RERKE S T
NRESRRERTERHTIGREMELD
HHEEES-

RZZBZRAF+_A=1—RH KXEERIA
THEIEER < TR BUB R EBNERE 2 &
DREWABOBRIAT

Group

AEE
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Within one year —FR 211,337 215,367
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EF_FEEAFT (BREEEMRTE) 310,360 284,025
After five years A 280 1 6 141,210 151,890

662,907 651,282
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37.0perating Lease Arrangements (continued)
(ii) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated

for terms ranging from three to twenty years.

At 31 December 2005, the Group and the Company had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases falling due as follows:

B RS ER R

37. REMH VLT HE 2)
(i) EBES

AEERBLKEHELHBAAETYE Y
PR ER=FE_TFT%F-

X

R-ETZRF+ _A=1+—H XEEEXK
REIRAT B ER 2 AR BUBZ 2 M4
EARARZRDENBLHAZRBENT

Group Company
REE KA T
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FET TET
Within one year —FR 7,548 6,855 2,602 2,602
F_EFEFERF
In the second to fifth years, inclusive (BIEEEMF) 21,536 18,001 2,434 4,648
After five years R A F 64,231 29,011 - =
93,315 53,867 5,036 7,250
38.Capital Commitments 38. EAREIE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
37(ii) above, the Group and the Company had the following

commitments at the balance sheet date:

B S EE37(i) Aratt 2 AS AR K0 EIN A
B AEERAR B AT RE:

Group Company
REH PN
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHEIT FTET FHIT
Commitments in respect of acquisition G EE 3 K AEF A
of land and buildings, and development  J 2 = ¥ 3£ f&
costs attributable to properties R
under development: L
Contracted, but not provided for BRI AU ME 18 R 418,075 516,446 - -
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38.Capital Commitments (continued) 38. EAREE &)
bR Bt 8 ARAIERIE PASN AN B R AR A B fE(S
E N B R 2 BEAREEMT :

associates’ own capital commitments, which are not included B

In addition, the Group’s and the Company’s shares of the

2005 Annual Report

above, were as follows:

g
E
E Group Company
i rEH P N/N|
é 2005 2004 2005 2004
E HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$000  HK$'000
@ FHE T FHBT F T TiBT
Contracted, but not provided for: B AT #ME 18 R A
Investment cost to be injected into R —KRHB A
a subsidiary EE 2 EYE - 9,863 - =
Investment cost to be injected into MR — RIS QA
an associate B 2 Y 41,507 - - -
Investment cost to be injected into MREZAERR
infrastructure joint ventures B 2 EYE - 8,517 - -
41,507 18,380 - -
39.Contingent Liabilities 39. FREE
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for REZEH UBmRTEEREZABERT:
in the financial statements were as follows:
Group Company
AEH PN
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT FTET T
(i) Guarantees for credit facilities (i) BTIAREREE
granted to: e 2 &R
Subsidiaries B B A A - - 124,904 211,480
Associates NS 10,761 15,698 - -
10,761 15,698 124,904 211,480
(ii) At 31 December 2005, the Group has given guarantees to a (i) A=ZZTRAF+_A=1T—H AEEHER

maximum extent of approximately HK$1,166,133,000 (2004:
HK$915,016,000) to banks for housing loans extended by the

banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties.

ﬁ%m 166,133,000 C (ZZZ P F:
915,016,000/ 7T) Z k= & REE  (EARTT
RYIAEEMEERZEREER ZER-
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39.Contingent Liabilities (continued) 39. RAREE (@) z
Hﬁ_

(iii) Pending litigation (iii) R EEFD R

Iz

A statement of claim dated 27 August 2002 was issued by ERRARERE—RER A FE R, ;L

At Ol oo R B w

e OeckonenCoUnied 0 TUIE)  gwaman(nann=re= L

P 9 paroup U FNAZHCAARAFAZ2EMBAR T

(“Shum Yip Shenzhen”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as the first defendant and Yaoheng Development
Co., Ltd. as the second defendant in a civil claim at the court
in Mainland China.

The Plaintiff claimed against Shum Yip Shenzhen for, inter
alia, damages suffered by the Plaintiff as a result of the breach
by Shum Yip Shenzhen of the terms of a cooperation
agreement entered into between the Plaintiff and Shum Yip
Shenzhen dated 8 July 1991, which include (i) Shum Yip
Shenzhen’s deliberate register of the properties named Shenfa
Garden under the name of Shum Yip Shenzhen and its refusal
to give the properties to the Plaintiff and (ii) Shum Yip
Shenzhen'’s appropriation of the Plaintiff's sales proceeds to
compensate the individual owners and the construction party
of Shenfa Garden and keeping the income in relation to
certain car parks and the kindergarten situated within the
area of Shenfa Garden. The Plaintiff claimed a total
compensation of approximately RMB170 million against Shum
Yip Shenzhen. Shum Yip Shenzhen lodged a defence and
counter claim for compensation of RMB1.3 million against
the Plaintiff on 22 October 2002. This case was heard in court
on 26 March 2003 and 5 November 2004, the arbitration
process is complicated and time-consuming. Up to date, the
parties are still waiting for the delivery of the arbitration award.
Mainland China lawyers are of the view that the outcome of
the case is not determinable at this stage.

As advised by Hong Kong lawyers, pursuant to a deed (the
“Deed”) entered into on 12 February 1997 by Shum Yip
Holdings as covenantor in favour of the Company as
covenantee in connection with the listing of the Company,
the Company may be able to claim indemnity from Shum Yip
Holdings if the Plaintiff and/or the applicant are successful in
their claims against Shum Yip Shenzhen on the ground that
Shum Yip Shenzhen had materially breached the cooperation
agreement, and the circumstances which gave rise to the
above litigation was already in existence at the time of
execution of the Deed.

REEE ORI ARQE (DRERII)
(F—KE) RBEERARAR (F®

T RERE-

JREHRFRIIRERE EREE (Ed
BIE) EASERERIEREFR—NN
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40.Related Party Transactions

(@) The Group had the following material transactions with the

0. BBEALIRS

(@) MEAN AEBEEUTEEALETUTE

following related parties during the year: AR5
Group
rEE
2005 2004
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTET FHETT
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, wnE (EE) BRAA
the ultimate holding company: (REERAT])
Rental expenses paid ENEEHS (i) 2,577 2,541
Shenzhen Gaofa Investment Holding Ltd., R®IITH & EIER B R A A
an associate of the Group: (REFBZBLNT]) :
Purchase of investment properties BEREMHE (ii) 58,565 -
Notes: B &

(i) The rentals were determined by the directors with reference to the market prices

of similar transactions.
(i)~ The investment properties were purchased according to the directors valuation

with reference to the valuation reports issued by independent professional qualified

property valuers.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

() HELEELEENZRBEXZIMERER-

(i) WEVEDNREFRHEBE MEFHEDZ2RBLE
FEERMEGHEMBERZ HERE-

b) XEFEXZEEAEZME:

2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAET

Short term employee benefits EHEBR/T 4,929 4,382

Post-employment benefits RIKE A 175 81

Share-based payments A& & 3R IE 9,180 =
Total compensation paid to key

management personnel FEEBEAEME R 14,284 4,463

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note

8 to the financial statements.

BN HBENMHHRKRMES
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41.Possible Reorganisation of the Business Or 41.—XMIB AT AIEETZEKE
Shareholding Restructure of a Subsidiary HEBRESABEA P
Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Shum RIREDREBRDERA R (DREDR]) E
Yip Logistics”) is a company incorporated under the laws of the R—FXBRBHBEEAMKLZ AE) TFREAR ﬁ
PRC and a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company. According to AIEBS1 % a2 MEB AR ARBREYR 2 ﬁ
the business licence of Shum Yip Logistics, its term of business XM OREMREEHRBEN_ZZRF i

will expire on 20 June 2006. The Company is currently negotiating
with the other shareholders of Shum Yip Logistics on the extension
of the term of business, and the potential business reorganisation
or shareholding restructure of Shum Yip Logistics. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not possible to determine with reasonable
certainty at the current stage the ultimate outcome of the
negotiations with the other shareholders of Shum Yip Logistics. If
the Company and the other shareholders of Shum Yip Logistics
fail to reach an agreement on the extension of its term of business,
Shum Yip Logistics may need to be liquidated according to the
PRC laws and regulations, in which case certain adjustments against
the carrying value of the assets and liabilities of Shum Yip Logistics

may be required.

Net assets after minority interests of Shum Yip Logistics as at 31
December 2005 and net profit after minority interests for the year
ended 31 December 2005 represented approximately 10% (2004:
11%) and 8% (2004: 3%) of the consolidated net assets after
minority interests of the Company as at 31 December 2005 and
the consolidated net profit after minority interests of the Company

for the year ended 31 December 2005, respectively.

As the Company continues to negotiate with the other
shareholders of Shum Yip Logistics for an agreement on the
extension of its term of business and the potential business
reorganisation or shareholding restructure, the directors consider
that no adjustments are required against the carrying value of the
assets and liabilities of Shum Yip Logistics as at the balance sheet
date.

ﬁﬂ:+E@ﬁM¢ A)IFEREE W 2 EAth AR
%?ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁvL\A&;ﬁ%%;ﬁ‘fabLﬁZ%
BEASREAESEETER TR0
H%%EIﬁ%éi@i@%ﬁ@i%%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁ&?%%
ZEAREER AR B ERZE YR 2 AR R R
BERtIE RS EHREK TR REMRKERR
HBLAEEREITRE ERAFEEHREDR
ZEAEABREBEERTE TAR.

RENFBE_ZTRF+_A=1+—HILF
EZEMRIBRE R EEFE REEBE
—TTRFT A=+ —HLEFEZENRD
RN 2 EH D RE AR RBE_ZETR
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Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans,
cash and short term deposits and equity investments. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s investment in Mainland China is mainly through its
subsidiaries and associates, which conduct business within the
Mainland China. Apart from interest payable, repayment of foreign
currency loans obtained to finance their operations and any
potential future dividend of its subsidiaries and associates may
declare to its shareholders, its turnover, capitalised investments
and expenses are denominated in Renminbi. The Group had not
experienced any difficulties in obtaining government approval for
its necessary foreign-exchange purchases. Assets and liabilities of
the Group are mostly dominated in RMB and U.S. Dollars. As such,
the Group has foreign exchange exposure to RMB and U.S. Dollars.
During the year, the Group did not apply any foreign instruments
for hedging purpose.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties except for the sales of properties, for which no credit is
given to the customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and available-for-sale financial assets,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

B RS ER R

42.Financial Risk Management Objectives and 42. AR EE 2 B W RBEX
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third

parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of short and long term

bank loans.
Comparative Amounts

As further explained in note 2.2 and 2.4 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs, during the current
year, the accounting treatment and the presentation of certain
items and balances in the financial statements has been revised to
comply with the new requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year
and opening balance adjustments have been made and certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified and restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation and accounting

treatment.

44. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 13 April 2006.
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